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THE MASTER: Are you ready to proceed, 

Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I am. 

THE MASTER: Proceed, 

MR. MITCHELL: I would like to have 

marked for exhibits, Your Honor, a series 

of checks. 

THE MASTER: You want to mark them 

individually? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir -- no, Your 

Honor. WvJld it be all right to do the same 

as we did with 162, if the Court please? 

THE MASTER: It is as you wish. 

MR. MITCHELL: One exhibit, Your Honor, 

with subnumbers. 

THE MASTER: What is it, 58? 

(Whereupon, said documents were 

marked for identification as Respondents• 

Exhibit 58, 1 through 10.) 

MR. MITCHELL: And may I also have 

marked as exhibits, Your Honor, these five 

indictments -- certified copies of these 

five indictments. 
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THE MASTER: Separately? 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, the same 

procedure, R-59, one, two, three and so 

forth. 

THE MASTER: That is fine. 

(Whereupon, said Locuments were marked 

for identification as Respondents' Exhibit 

59, 1 through 5.) 
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RUDOLFO COULING, 

the witness, having been first duly sworn. testified 

as follows, to-wit: 

!!!~!!!!!..Q.! 

(CONTINUED) 

8 BY MR. MITCHELL: 
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Mr. Couling, 1 believe yesterday I asked you as 

regards certain indictments presently pending 

against you and 1 will hand you what has now been 

marked as R-59, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 which appear to be 

certified copies of indictments presently pending. 

First of all, a-59-1 baing in Cause No. 

3598, State of Texas versus Rudolfo N. Couling 

in the 229th District Court, is that correct? 

That appears to be that against you, does it not? 

Yes, sir. 

And R-59-2, which appears to be a certified copy 

of an indictment in Cause No. 3602, State of Texa 

versus Rudolfo N. Couling, which is also you, am 

1 also correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And R-59-3, which appears to be certified copies 
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of an indictment in Cause No. 3601, State of 

Texas versus Rudolfo H. Couling, which is you? 

Yes, sir. 

And R-59-4, which appears to be a certified copy 

of an indictment in Cause No. 3600, State of Texas 

versus Rudolfo N. Couling, which is you, is that 

correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And R-59-5, which appears to be a certified 

copy of an indictment in Cause No. 3599, State of 

Texas versus Ru~)lfo H. Couling; am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer these, Your 

Honor. 

I state for the record that previously 

to commencing our session, I have shown 

copies to counsel, but I hand them back to 

him. 

While counsel is examining, Your Honor, 

may I state for the record also as I 

previously noted yesterday in the case, 

Motion for Leave to File Petition for Writ 

of Mandamus and Prohibition, that I would 

file the number for those proceedings and I 

do have that number that can be put into the 
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record. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: And this is the docket. 

the Supreme Court of the State of Texas that 

would be B-5668, Judge Meyers. and that would 

be on Exhibit --

THE MASTER: R-55 t 

MR. MITCHELL: R-55. Yesterday. 

there was two of them. Judge. 

THE MASTER: I know, but you weren't 

denied to 4ead --

MR. MITCHELL! Well --

THE MASTER: I don't know whether they 

gave a number to 56 or not, did they? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, they gave us -­

THE MASTER: The same number? 

MR. MITCHELL: -- the same number. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Odam, is it agreeable 

that I may just insert that on the exhibit 

myself? 

MR. ODAM: Yea, 

THE MASTERt It's B-5668. 

MR. MITCHELL: B-5668, Judge Meyers, on 

the docket of the Suprem~ Court. 

THE MASTER: Is there objection to R-59? 
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MR. ODAM: Your Honor, we would object 

on the grounds I have not had a chance to 

go through each one of these. I think 

R-59-2 states that Mr. Couling has been 

indicted and with intent to obtain the 

benefits for himself naming the person or 

the benefits of an Ex~on credit card such 

and such issued to htm by the said school 

district for his official use and misapplied 

the credit card,and here is another one on 

Texaco cr~dit card. Just slancing through 

these, I had the opportunity as Mr. Mitchell 

pointed out to do so before we started the 

proceedings and slancing through them right 

now, we would object on the grounds of 

relevancy as far as the impeachment is 

concerned. These indictments we have here 

do not obtain the controversy top aide or 

bottom, even for impeachment purposes and do 

not so to the credibility of the witness. 

THE MASTER: The indictments do not 

impeach, but these are not offered for that 

sort of impeachment. They are offered to 

show what this witness g~t by way of benefit 

or value by virtue of his asraementa to 
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testify. It's just a background to that 

agreement, as I understand it. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's right, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: I think he is entitled to 

that. A bargain was struck. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Your Honor. 

I didn't mean to inte~rupt the Court, but I 

think the objection is partially well taken 

and I might ask a few questions to be sure 

that the record is completely clear on the 

predicate, but that is correct, Your Honor, 

to show the agreements behind R-57 and also, 

Your Honor, out of fairness to the record, 

to show a~ill-over -- well, not only the 

general impeachment, but impeachment of 

misconduct. 

THE MASTER: I do not think they impeach 

on that basis. I think only final conviction 

is impeachment. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will have to ask him 

a predicate question and I will submit another 

rule of law. 

THE MASTER: You're correct. I know 

what that is going to be, but you haven't 

asked it. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I haven't asked it. That 

is why I ask you with leave of court. 

THE MASTER: Do you withdraw your offer 

at this time? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. The way it's 

stated, the objection is good, Your Honor, 

and I would like to co1.tinue. 

THE MASTER: Of course, I think they 

are admissible on another ground, and that 

is just to show what was exchanged for his 

agreement ~o testify, but you need to 

develop a little more. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. And I would 

like to, if I could. I would like to develop 

the record a bit. It's a little green at 

this point, and I would like to develop it a 

little more. 

MR. ODAM: On the basis of the Court's 

statement as to the admissibility on other 

points, we would again point out that the 

memorandum of understanding on which the 

Court would allow them to go in on the 

agreement to testify, the memorandum of 

understanding, as pointed out yesterday, 

is a memorandum of understanding to testify 
--------~---------------------------------------------------------j--
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in all criminal proceedings by the State of 

Texas, and this is not a criminal proceeding. 

This witness is not testifying here pursuant 

to that memorandum of understanding and 

because of that again I would say they are 

not relevant to that because the witness is 

not testifying with refrrence to that 

memorandum of underotanding. 

I presume, but I don't know. I imagine 

if the memorandum were entered in federal 

court and 1.~ went about it over there, perhap~ 

it would be relevant there, but I think the 

memorandum of understanding is not relevant 

and then we go one step further to face 

indictments, which I said were irrelevant 

and I do not think the indictments would be 

relevant 

MR. MITCHELL: And I will say this, 

unless the record be silent, I think you have 

here a criminal proceeding, at least a 

quasi-proceeding as to the statute and 

constitution and the full import of the due 

process protection, the right of confronta-

tion, the right -- all rights guaranteed at 

a criminal trial. 
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THE MASTER: Go ahead with your 

development. 

I 
I 
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I 

I 
I Q Mr. Coulin~. l~t mP ~o back and ask you some 

2 I t~lnk I askP.d you orPviously about 

3 the E~hlblt whirh was a contract and a~r@@ment 

4 entf'red into by you, wh-1 ch is now f.n evidenef' a !'I 

5 R-57 and it is bf'tween you and Arnulfo Guerra, 

6 the District Attorney of th~ 229th Judicial Dis-

7 trlct of Texas, and Mr. John ~lanton. You recall 

8 that testimony, do you not? 

9 A Yes, ~tr. 

10 Q And I beliPVE' I h11d ask•d you yesterday orevtously 

11 whethf'r or not n~ the time th11t this a~rf'ement 

12 

13 been indictP.d five times. I bellf'VE' I asked you 

14 si.x and you corrected me and I believe you said 

15 no, I bPli@Ve {t was five. Do you recall that 

16 ouest ion? 

17 A Would you reoeat it? 

18 Q I had asked you whether or not Rt the time you 

19 had entP.red into an a~r•ement in R-57 which was 

20 Au~ust of this year, you had been orevlously 

21 indicted fivP. tfmes? 

H A In Au~ust, yP.s. 

~ Q And I believe I also 11skPd you this mornin~ if 

24 R-59-1, 2, ~. 4 and 5 were conies of thosP 

25 indictments? 

----~---------------------------------+-
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Q All rt~ht, then, tn 8ddttinn nnw thfs morntn,, 

I will aRk you ~R to ~art nf t~~ a~reement in 

that you made wfth the St8tP nf Te~as and the 

Attorney GPnPral, was to ~ive te~timony, whatever 

dfsmt~~•l of thPse Indictment~, all but one tn 

which you will ~1P8d ~uilty 8nd wflt receive ~ro-

hatton, isn't that correct? 

A YPR, l'lir. 

Q And, of cour!'ie, ·ou hav.- uo to this l)O(nt, no 

rPason to bP11.~>vP that tf you c8rry nut your end 

of the bar~8fn, that is if you tel'ltify a~ainst 

court, which you have already done, or any other 

orocedure as covered by that a~rePment R-57, that 

the State of Te~as will dismiss thPse tndictmentl'l, 

all but onP to which you wfll be allowed to 

olead j!ui.lty and ynu will receive l)rob~ttlon? 

A Yes, sir, that fs what tt states here. 

0 Sure, and you're relyin~ nn it and that ts the 

reason why you ,ave uo your rfj!ht~ that you ~re-

vtously exercised fn Austin before the select 

the sub-committee of the Hnu&e to claim your 
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17th of thts yPar in the federal court a~ainst 

Jud~e Carrillo in the U. S. v 0. P. Carrillo and 

Ramfro Carrillo in the fpderal trial. 

A Would you ~o ~~Pa~ and rrohrase t~P auestion. 

You mean I was in~tctedbPfore I went to Austin or 

11ft erw11rd s. 

Q You wt>re "lndtctrd after you ~rnt to AuRttn? 

A I Wts 'fndf.cted after I claimed thf' F'f fth. 

Q Ri~ht? 

A YEt!!, sir. 

Q And you ~avt> uo your ri~ht to claim your Fifth 

Amendmf'nt aftPr you made your deal? 

A Yet~~, str. 

Q And you testified very clearly an~ for two days 

as I rf'call back in Seotember i.n thP federal 

court here tn Corous ChrtRtt, am I correct? 

A Yes, s1.r. 

Q And the reason wl'ls that you were ~uilty of the 

offenses set out in these tndtrtment!! and you 

did not want to be orosecutrd for them and you 

are willin~ to exchan~e your right to claim your 

ortvtle~e in exchan~e for the d'fsmtssal of thesP 

tndlctments. Am I correct? 

You were ~uilty of them, they weren't shams, 

they weren't ohonies, were they? The tndietment, 
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t~~ char~PA for whlch you werr 2ullty? 

Well, I don't know, slr. 

3 0 Y()u don't kno•·• "'hethe-r or not youwerf' guilty of 

4 thPSP offensPs w~en you Atruck your deal? 

5 A Well. r waAn 1 t ~~ln2 to takP 8 c~ancP, so r went 

6 

7 0 tn othPr word!': t~Pre wAs eno11P:h Rmnkt> there to 

8 where you fl2urPd there m{ght be a little fire 

9 ~n you went ahPad and made your de~l? 

10 A YPs, sir. 

11 0 And t..Jtll J)lead, 'f cour:otP, to one of them! 

12 

13 Q Either one or-- on R-59- 1, 1, 3, 4 or 5, am 

14 ! corrPct? 

15 A Y P s , sir. 

16 Q And you know l'lt thP timf' you wf ll bE' asked by 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

t~E' 1ud2e whethPr or not you arP guilty and I 

AuonosP you l'lrP 2uilty and you wtll so testify 

under oAth, am I correct? 

A YPs, !'dr. 

Q All dg~t. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, Your Honor. we 

offer R-59-1, 2, 1, 4 and 5. 

T '-IE MASTER: ! think onP of them is 

admist~~fble but I don't know whfch onf', 
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t~at basis, you know, I think they are 

3 MR. MITCHELL: All rt~ht, Your Honor. 

4 THE MASTER: Because I believe the 

5 record yesterday indicated that Mr. Coulin~'s 

6 mind -- in Mr. Coulin~•s min«'! he was testt-

7 fytng here nursuant to that a~reement lrre~-

8 nective of the exact words of the a~reement 

9 and I admftte~ them on t~at basis. 

10 He has admitted his ~uilt to one of 

11 those, but ,.~t S1'eeified which nne. 

12 MR. MITCHELL: That's rl~ht, Jud~e, 

13 

14 THE MASTER: That is correct. 

IS MR. MITCHELL: So we are nut in a 

16 nosition of -- a stran~e oosition where you 

17 have an indictment as the Court well knows 

18 the rule, and that is the reason the Court 

19 is hesitant tn admittfn~. where you have an 

20 tndietment and no admission of ~ullt. 

21 But, on the t.h.-ory that the Court has 

22 

23 THE MASTER: I admit it. 

U Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Let me ask you the nuesttons 

25 before I ~o into the ftuestfons of yesterday 
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aft~rnoon, 1~t mP ask you ~om~ auP~ttons lbout 

Ftrst, lPt's look at R-59-1. That R-59-1 

char~t'!!l you wlth thPft of a chpck number 1727 

f!!IAUPd by thP BPnavtdPs Indt>oPndent School Dis­

trict, dot's it not, Mr. Coulin~? 

8 Q And that off~nse arost>, l suoooAe, from the 

9 char~~s -- thP charge arosP at Auch time as you 

10 werP thP ta~ a!!lsessor-collector of the Benavides 

II Indt>oPndent Schr ~1 District? 

12 A YPs, sir. 

13 Q Is that correct? 

14 A Yf'S, !!!:f.r. 

15 Q Now, was that a check which you had caused to be 

16 fs!!lued to the Zertuche Genpral Store of the 

17 01 i.vera ImolPment and Hardwart> or the Benavides 

18 Imolement and Hardware, do you recall? 

19 A I can't rf>call unless I see thf!' chf!'ck, Mr. 

20 Mf.tchell. 

21 Q A 11 rf.,;ht, do you know whethPr or not 1. t was one 

22 that you were -- that you had for!!:t>d the endorst>-

23 ment on? 

24 A No, sir, I don't rf'member. 

~ Q ArP you ~uite sure that it fs not one of the 
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checks that we have talkP.d about here in this 

2 caRP tnvolvin~ thP Benavides Imolement and Har~-

3 w11re? 

4 A N,.,, sir. 

5 Q You are not sure? 

6 A I am not sure, I believe thfs h~td to be a cheek 

7 from the school, not the county check, sir. 

8 Q All ri~ht, so your answer would be that you are 

9 ~ure to the e~tent that the indictment arose out 

10 of ll theft clai.m by the Grand Jury of It cheek 

11 from the Benavir's Indenendent School District 

12 as distinct from the Duval County, is that cor-

13 rect? 

U A YPs, sir. 

15 Q Am I correct? 

16 A Yes, si.r. 

17 Q And conse~uently your testimony before this 

18 Court is that you are aasumin~,therefore, that 

19 the offensP erose not i.n connecti.on with any of 

20 these checks we have telkPd about in this case? 

21 A Not from this indictment, no, si.r. 

~ Q All ri~ht. Now, while I am on thet, do you 

23 

24 

25 

recall, Mr. Coulfng ·- set that aside just a 

minute, in the fedPral c11se, and I am JZOin~Z to 

go throu~h these, do you recall testffyinR on the 
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~tand under nath in the federal ca~e that you 

ca~d to be ts~ued certain checks from Duval 

County, to Benavides Indeoendent School District 

tn the total amount of twenty-t~o thousand dollarA 

in thE' year 1968~ seven thousand dollars in the 

year 1969 and ftve thousand five hundred in the 

vear 1970, checks that you caused to be issued 

Pither from the Benavides Indeoendent School 

District or Duval County or the Conservation Dis• 

trict oayablP. to Olivera Imolement and Hardware, 

Zertuche GPnerAl Store and which you eithrr 

for~ed the endorsement, and I believe the endorsP· 

ment with Olivera Im01ement that you for~ed~ your 

wtfe that you fnr~ed, am I correct? 

A Yes, sir, so far, yes. 

Q And Zertuche General Store, I believe, whtch you 

for~ed? 

A I believe you had one check in thPre, yes, sir, 

Q And Arturo Zertuche? 

A Which was the same check. 

Q Ri~ht, there was no doubt about thosP trans-

l!tcttons and I believe Mrs. Olivera? 

A Yes. 

Q Your mother•in•law? 
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Q And your daddy-in-18w Aft~r h~ went blind? 

A No, I didn't put ~is name, no. ~{r. 

Q But at any rat~. in the fed~rAl court you were 

also -- you do r~call havin~ t~stiffed that those 

check~ were isAued by you, cAused to be for~ed by 

you and the cash -- and cashed and the cash, I 

b~lfeve, ~tven to Judge Carr41lo ts what you testt-

fied to? 

A All th~ checks were from t~e Benavfdes Inde~endent 

School District, sir. 

Q But you-- you,,, recall that testimony that those 

checks were issued by you, they were for~eries 

when they were fs~ued and they were for~eries 

"'hen they were Clll'lhed and I believe you Sit~. d over 

there you just handed the money to Jud~e Carrillo? 

A Part of the money, sir. 

Q You ke~t some of it? 

A Yes, s tr. 

Q And that was tn 68. 69 and 70, am I correct, Mr. 

Coultn~? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q All rt~ht, now, do you recall at the !'lame time 

testi.fyin~ that you had causpd to bf' for,red or 

issued a check number 68,2 for fiv~ hundrf'd 

dollars to the Zertuche General Store which you 
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A I don't recall, I would have to see the check, 

!'!fr. 

Q All ri~ht, I will ~ee tf I can ~et th~t over here 

to refresh your memory. 

Do you recall that you had one also tn the 

amount of two thousand one hundred and two dol1~rs 

from Duv~l r.ounty? 

Now, that f~ the samP. one we are talkin~ 

about here tn this case, you understand the 

DuvRl County checks, I'm not talkfn~ ahout the 

Benavides Indeoendent School District. 

A From what year, !'!ir? 

Q From 1970 -- 6R. 

A I have ~ot to see the check. 

Q All ri~ht, do you recall any checks that you 

fssued -- caused to be issued, fraudulently from 

Duval County fn 69 to Zertuche General Store, 

OlfvPra Imolement and Hardware or Benavides Imole-

ment and HRrdware? 

A I'll have to see them. 

Q And I will ~sk you the same ~uestfon ~s regar~s 

1970, do you have any recollection of a thousand 

and ten dollar check bein~ check number ~1~7 from 

Duval County to ZertuchP. GenPral Store or BenavidPr 
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thP m~ney, or you testiff~d you ~ave the money 

A I'll have to seP the check. 

Q And I'll a~k you the one on a thou~and and eight 

dollar~, now there is a thousand and e•~ht dollar 

one here. 

A Whl'tt ye~tr? 

Q WP are talkinv about 1970 -- yes, 1970. 

A I'll have to ~ee the check. 

Q Check number ~41Y that you testified to over 

thPre that you f~r~ed? 

A I'll have t~ see that check, Rir. 

Q All r-tght. 

A 1970? 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, if I mt~ht, the 

ml'ttertal ao~arently -- I was n~t at the 

federal trial, but tt sounds like, based on 

the ouestions he is oro~oundtn~. these aues-

tions that were asked of this witne~s in the 

federal case involving certain years with 

re~ard to Judge Carrillo, we would~ur~e the 

objection to this testfmony, that it is 

go'ln~ now -partly on the 1ndtctment deal i.n~r. 

with the Benavides Inde~endent School Dtstrf 
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and by n~1ntfn~ out t~~ y~ar, tt could not b~. 

f t was l970. 

Dtetrtct, tho~~ arp not fssu•s that ar• 

don't •v•n ~o t~ th• cr•dtbftfty of this 

w{tn~s~ for tma•aehmPnt nuroos•s and w~ wnuld 

ob1•rt on th~ ~rounds of rP1Pvanc~ to ~n 

but is •nttrPly • dtff~r•nt aroc•dur~ h•r• 

wtth dtffPrPnt tssuPB and dtffPrPnt oubltr 

MR. MITCHELL: May T r~soond to thst, 

.Jud~•? 
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THE MASTER: 'W~1.1, I'm 1u!lt dPbatin,:!; 

MR, MITCHELL: WPll, Your Honor, of 

course, wfth thP contract anrl a~reement out-

standin~, R-57, and thi~ man's testimony in 

the ~rPvious trial, followin~ that contract 

our theory is that what hP dld -- strike 

thll t. 

Our thPory is he is not crPdible and 

th.!lt hP would do anyth1n~ tn save hiR skin. 

So, at the ~ederal trial he 1ust lumped 

to~ether five thousand five hundred in one 

year, ~even thousand one hundrPd and twenty-

nine in another ypar 11nd twenty-two thousand 

in another yPar and that would be for 196R 

throu~h 1970, the !lame tyne of check!~, diffpr-

ent entitiPs: roll them all into a bi~ bal1 

of wax, oay them to Jud~e Carrillo. 

Thpn, I say the !lcenario chan,:!;ed, he 

just moved over to thts onP and started in 

71, the samP modus o~erPndt, same scheme to 

THE MASTER: What is the rule of tmpeac~-

ment ~herP a oerson on thP st11nd, thou~h not 

char~ed with a felor.y, 11dmit~ to one, is 
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that 1m~~~chm~nt? 

MR. MITCHELL: Prior sets of mts-

conduct, nnt tn th~ form of ~ final eonvte-

tion or an indietm~nt of a fPlnny, a non-

r~mot~ fplony involvin~ moral tur~ttud~ 

would b~ admissible. 

THE MASTER: HP ha~ not b~en ehar~ed 

with th~s~ th1n~s, h~ is admittin~ th~se 

thinp:s. 

MR. MITCHELL: Misconduct short of 

i ndietm~nt ,,r short of eonvi eti on and that 

would admissible, Jud~P, "'" !'lubmtt. 

IneidE>ntally, Judp:~. it would also be 

admissible on what "'E' cnnsidPr r.•ould b~ a 

~uestion of his total cr~dibitility, thP 

n~ttern that he has foll~w~d. He iuat stPoR 

out of on~ forum into anot~er forum and we 

say unless this Court has ~ot all of this 

in front of it, his story 1u~t ~pts abso-

lutely ineredtbl~. 

MR. ODAM: I e~rtainly do not mind 

the federal jury did in the trial that 

went to th~ fpderal conviction. HP was 

one of th~ main witn~sses and I have no 
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nu~stfnn in my mind as to ht~ cr~dlhllfty 

2 a~ th~ 1ury did In that case and I don't 

3 mtnd goln~ into it. 

4 I think tt orolongs the ~roceedfn~ 

5 unduly nnd oarttcularly w~en the~P ~roceed-

6 in~~ tl,l'lt NE' are going into right now are 

7 not ~roc~edin~s but trarsactions, are remote 

8 both in oofnt of time and wit~ re~ard to thP 

9 enti tf.es. 

10 I would submit t~11t pven for i mnf'achmPnt 

11 ouro~s~~ th ~ line of auesttontng is irrele-

12 vant, even to the credibility of this wit· 

13 nf'ss on the~P transactions which he Is ces-

14 t i fyin~ to here. 

15 THE MASTER: I am ~oin~ to overrule the 

16 nh_1 t>ct~ on. 

17 MR. MITCHELL: I had com~leted th11t 

18 line of auestions, Ynur Honor, but I could 

19 save the Court som~ time. 

~ Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) At any rate, Mr. Coultn~. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

thr indictment t!W: I h8ve asked you about R-59-1 

does -- was one that was sou~ht and 

was at the time R-57 was entf'redtnto? 

A Yrs, sf.r. 

Q Am I eorrt>ct? 
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A Yes, sf.r. 

2 Q And ynu don't --and I bf'lievP f_n summary the 

3 check whichyou were char~ed with stf'alinR in that 

4 indi,.tment, thst f.s R-59-t, i.s not involved in 

5 the testimony that you have ~f.ven i.n this court 

6 

7 School District check, am I Lorrect? 

8 A Yes, sir. 

9 Q All ri~ht, now, let mP ask you about R-59-5, whi.ch 

10 Is the indictment, I believe. for theft? 

11 
A Yes, sir. 

12 Q It char~es you on nr about the 14th day of Janu-

13 
ary, 1974, with theft of ftro~erty in excess of 

14 two hundred dollars belon~ing to the Benavides 

15 Indeftendent School District, am I correct? 

16 A Yes, sir. 

17 Q Now, I will ask you if you know, ~lease, sir, 

18 whether or not the charge thPre desls with any 

19 
ftro~f'rty, the tmft that is chargin~ you, the 

20 Grand Jury is simftly accusin~ you fn thst indict-

21 ment of any theft of any ~ro~erty that is 

22 involved in the ~rf'sent lawsuit? 

23 A No, sf_r. 

24 Q No e~ui~aent, no monf'y? 

25 A No, sir. 
------~-----------------------------------------------------------------~ I 
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Q Or anythin~ you have testified to before Jud~e 

3 A I don't remember wh~t it was be~ause I don't 

4 PVen know what thRt iR. 

5 Q All ri~ht, then the indictments ~ -- R-59-2, ~ 

s and 4 deal with theft and misa~~lication of 

7 1 Benavides Inde~endent School District ~roperty 

8 in the form Of credit cards. They, of courAe, 

9 have nothln~ to do with the ~resent ~roceedin~ 

10 in terms of bein~ the same prn~erty, am I corrPct? 

l1 A No, sir. 

12 Q All ri~ht. Now, let me direct your attention, 

13 tf I might, back to yesterday'R 

14 MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. M~ty I have 

15 just a ~econd, Jud~e? 

16 

(Discussion off the record.) 
17 

18 Q Do you recall I had asked you yesterday, Mr. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Coulln~. on several occasions about the rental 

of a bulldozPr to Judp:e Carrillo and particularly 

I believe WP talked about the year 197~ end 74, 

do you recall that? 

23 A Y f"S , sir. 

24 Q Do you recall tbt testimony? 

25 A Yes, sir. 

----!!--------------------------------- -+-
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Q And I believe to ~ut the nue~ttons that I em 

~otn~ to ask you tn oroner reference, tf I recall, 

when the state called you, when the Examiner 

called you, your testimony was in sum and sub-

stance that there was a scheme hatched in May 6th, 

1971, whereby you and Ramiro Carrillo a~reed that 

you would institute or orir,tr~te false invoices 

u~on which there would b~ county checks issued 

which -- for the ~ur~ose nf issutn~ that money to 

Jud~e Carrillo for the ~uroose of buying in ~art 

or oaying for ~o~e bulldozers? 

A WPll, in 1971, sir, are we talkin~ about the 

account in San DieJZ:o or Rio GrandE', that is what 

I am confused on those two cases. 

0 All rt~ht, Mr. Coulin~, out of fairness to you 

I am talkinli!: really, I want to direct my atten-

tton -- your attention and my nuestions will be 

directed to you on the bulldozer ourchase which 

was December of 72, I believe, and that is w~en 

they were ~urchased. Do you recall that? 

A Yes, I believe it was 72, sir. 

Q All dght. 

Q And that was R-160, if my memory serves mP. 

THE MASTER: No, not R-160, it was 

._,r----------------------------------------------------~ I 
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E-}60. 

Q January of 1971, you ar~ rt~ht, ffft~~n hundred 

dotters, am I ~orr~ct? 

(Dt~cussion off th~ record.) 

Q YeR, that is E-160, I am actually ~ofn~ to ask 

you now and I went to direct your ~ttentton to 

December 14th, 1~72, contract E-160 betw~en 

BPnavides ImolPment end Hardwar~ Company and 

Plains Machinery Com~e, from Cor~us Chrtstt, 

A YPe, sir. 

Q And you have th~t. I believe, therP before you, 

is that corrP.ct? 

A CorrPct, air. 

Q Row, I had asked you ~uestions, Mr. Coulin~, as 

been oatd •• or checks that were in evidence 

whteh you say were for thP ~urpose of paying thP 

1971 payments and I had ~sked you whether or not 

as a matter of fact, ~ou had taken that aoney in 
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that -- that is, from t~P county in the amount of 

2 f'lP.ven thoul'land four hundrf'd ttnd ef.~rht dollars 

3 and fifteen cents and at the ~ame time had 

4 received rental ~ayments from Jud~e Carrillo, if 

5 you recall that? 

6 A Yes, you esked mE' {f I wits ~otPttin, checkt'l from 

7 0, P. Carrillo, yes, sir. 

8 Q And I bE'lieve your testimony was you do recall 

9 having recE'ivf'd chPck'l but you dfd not rf'mf'mber 

10 without seeing the checks themselves thP ltmounts 

II when or where, ~~ I correct? 

12 A That f~ correct, sir. 

13 Q Now, when I ~ay you, I ltm talktn~ot lthout the 

14 

15 A Yes, 11ir. 

16 Q Am I corrf'c t? 

17 

18 Q All rt,ht, so that the record is ebundantly clf'ar. 

19 your testimony has been ~otenf'rltlly that this 

20 device, this schemf', was for the ~urnosP of buy-

21 in~. naying for the Cater~tllar tractors that 

are re~resented by the nurcha~P of BPnavtdes 

23 Imnlement and Hardware. am I correct? That con-

24 traet that you have, E·160 in your hand? 

~ A Yes, sir. 
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Q All rt~ht, now E-160, so th~ r~cord reflects 

2 furth~r. tt does not havp Jud~~ 0. P. CeDillo's 

3 nam~ on it, do~s it? 

4 A No, ~ir, but he made the deal tn buy it. 

5 Q I understand that has been your testimony. It 

6 i.s 11 contract whereby the le~al t{tJ..e of that 

7 eouioment is in Benavides Im~lem~nt and Hardware? 

8 A Yes, sir. 

9 Q And if Benavides Imolement and Hardware bou~ht it, 

10 naid for it, comolied wi.th the cortract, Benavid~s 

II Imolement and Ha~dware, you wfll a~ree, would 

12 have owned those two tractors. am I arrect? 

13 A Yes, s lr. 

~ Q All right, and th~ total ourchas~ ortce of the 

15 two ~actors were in excess of what, thi.rty-five 

16 or thirty-sf~ thousand dollars, am I correct? 

17 A I don't remember the exact orice. 

~ Q Thirty-five thousand dollars? 

19 A Yes , s i r • 

~ Q And as a matter of fact, Mr. Coultn~. when you 

21 uurchased -- that is, when Benavides Imolement 

22 and Hardware ourchased those two tractors tn 

23 1972, the name Benavides Imolement and Hadware 

24 was the only name that aooeared as the ourchaser~ 

25 A Yes, sir. 
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Q You also carrt~d t~t tractor on your tax return, 

that is th~ Sch~dule C, Benavides Im~lement and 

Hardware for 1973, did you not? 

A I don't recall, sir. I don't remember. I can't 

~ay yes or no. 

Q Do you know when you filed yo~ income tax for 

75, by A~rtl of 75 for your "'4 income, that you 

de~reciate~ those two tractors for 1974? 

A In 75, I haven't filed a re~ort yet for 75, sir. 

---------------------------------------------;~ 
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Q ( B~r Mr. Mit che 11) We 11, when you made your 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

settlemenbfor your sixty-nine thousand dollars, 

wasn't that part of the deal? 

I don't remember if it was in there, sir., I 

can't say one way or another. 

Well, at any rate, the checks that are in 

evidence indicate that Bena·, ides Implement and 

Hardware did receive in 1973, eleven thousand 

four hundred dollars for various reasons from 

Duval County, am I correct? 

I imagine so, b~r. 

And it was your testimony, I believe, yesterday, 

that that scheme or that device was for the 

purpose of paying for those two tractors, correct? 

Part of the deal, yes, sir. 

And that when Judge Carrillo -- if Judge Carrillo 

paid you any rent, that was to make up any 

difference between the payments required under 

that contract and what you got from the county. 

I believe that was your further testimony; am I 

correct? 

Well, the difference was that he made -- that the 

payments would be met at Plains Machinery. 

That is what I understood yovr testimony to be. 

And I believe we further went into the arithmetic 

----+-----------------------------------------t-
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2 

3 

4 

5 A 

6 Q 

7 
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9 A 

10 Q 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

21 Q 

22 

23 

24 

25 

of those checks and found that there was about 

eleven thousand four hundred and eight dollars 

received by Benavides Implement and Hardware for 

1973 from the county? 

1 don't remember. I don't know the exact amount. 

You haven't got -- if the record reflects 

thereabouts, you wouldn't r,.ive any quarrel with 

the record, am I correct? 

No, sir. 

And I believe the record reflects further, to 

bring us up to date so I can ask you some 

additional questions, that the payments for that 

period of time, and that is January to December 

of '73, would have been fifteen hundred dollars 

a month or a total of eighteen thousand dollars; 

am 1 correct? 

You're not including '74? 

No, just '73. 

I don't know the exact month, because we had the 

checks for '74. 

Yes, if you will recall in March of 1974, you 

paid three thousand dollars to Plains Equipment 

and paid -- I believe you couldn't decide 

whether it was March, April, February or March 

I 

--~r-----------------------------1 
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A There was one in January and one in March. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

One in January for three and one in March for 

three? 

Yes. 

Let's set that aside because that is the period 

you measured payments up to that time that that 

note went into default and lt was repossessed. 

We are talking about 1 73 now. 

Yes, sir. 

There is no question that that would have been 

about eighteen ~housand dollars under that 

contract, am I correct, the payments? 

Well, if it shows that on the record, that is 

what it is. 

All right. Now, I will hand you what's been 

previously marked and identified as R-58-1, 2, 

3, 4, 5 and through and including 10, and ask 

you if you recognize these checks to Benavides 

Implement and Hardware by Judge Carrillo and 

particularly if you will note the endorsement of 

Benavides Implement and Hardware Company; moat of 

them are for deposit. I will ask you to go 

through those, Mr. Couling, and see if you can 

recognize those as checks given to you by my 

client fo~ rental on those tractors in '73. 
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MR. MITCHELL: While he is looking at 

that, Your Honor, may I have an additional 

one marked? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: That would be R-58-11. 

(Whereupon, said 1ocument was 

marked for identification as Respondents' 

Exhibit No. 58-11.) 

(By Mr. Mitche~l) Have you examined those now, 

Mr. Couling? 

Yes. 

And do they appear to have been checks that you 

received in the name of Benavides Implement and 

Hardware from Judge Carrillo at the times and in 

the amounts indicated on the checks? 

They appear to be so. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we have 

previously shown this to the attorney for 

the Examiner because we have added one, 

Mr. Odam, that I somehow overlooked, and we 

offer them. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, for the purposes 

of deciding whether or not to level objection 
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on these checks, I wonder if I could take 

the witness on voir dire in establishing --

THE MASTER: You may. 

V 0 I R D I R E E X A M I N A T I 0 N ---- ---- -----------
BY MR.. ODAM: 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Mr. Couling, I show you what has been marked by 

the court reporter as R-58-1, a check in the 

amount of two thousand five hundred dollars. You 

can identify that as being Judge 0. P. Carrillo's 

signature? 

Yes, sir. 

And perhaps you testified to this earlier and I 

did not hear; can you identify the signature as 

to who filled out and paid to the order of and 

how much money? 

Yes, sir, it looks like Mr. 0. P. Carrillo's, 

Benavidea Implement, twenty-five hundred dollars. 

In the bottom left, can you read into the record 
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what it states to be the purpose of the check7 

Cat rental and equipment. 

Cat rental and equipaent? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, can you recall what would be the purpose of 

this check for two thousand five hundred dollars? 

MR. MITCHELL: Ju1ge, we are going to 

object. I believe the question goes beyond 

voir dire. He has a right to take him on 

recross. The witness has identified the 

signature ~nd the endorsement as his own. 

THE MASTERs I am inclined to agree, 

Mr. Odam, but tell me what objection that 

question would lead to. 
I 

i 
I 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the witness has i 
previously testified that Judge Carrillo i 

made payments to make up in part the payments! 

to go to Plains Machinery on two Caterpillars. 

These checks have been offered apparently 

to show the rental payments, et cetera. 

This particular check says rental -- I mean 

Cat rental and equipment. The purpose of 

my question is to determine whether or not 

this particular check is relevant to the 

payments for the rental of the Caterpillar 
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and is to determine what the equipment is 

on here. 

Now, this is a check for two thousand 

five hundred dollars payment for February of 

1973. Is this a check that is relevant to 

the payment for the Caterpillars? Is it a 

check relevant to paJMents of something else? 

I am trying to determine through this witness 

whether or not to object on the grounds of 

relevancy of the offer of this check on the 

relevanc} of the payments on the rental of 

the Caterpillar. It says it's for Cat rental 

and equipment. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Judge. I 

submit without being facetious it says Cat 

rental. I don't know how close you can get 

if it said tent rental, I could see counsel's 

purpose, but the document speaks to the 

contract directly and the year. 

MR. ODAM: It says Cat rental and 

equipment. 

THE MASTER: Yes, I think, however, that 

the purpose for which these checks were give~, 

that is whether it was all Cat rental or 

part Cat rental, part something else may well 
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be disputed. You may take one position and 

Judge Carrillo another position with respect 

to that, but as of now, if they are admitted, 

my notes don't ehow that they have been 

offered. 

Did you offer them? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yfs, Your Honor, I did. 

THE MASTER1 1 just didn't make a note 

of them. 

MR. MITCHELL: I made an offer of them. 

THE f~STER: It seems to me it goes 

just to the weight. This is money received 

by Benavides Implement and Hardware to some 

extent obviously including some rental, but 

it does seem to be that this is more cross-

examination than voir dire. 

MR. ODAM: Well, obviously I do not 

want to quarrel with the Court. The only 

point I have about the check is that that 

of the grounds of relevancy as to whether or 

not they were made for payment on the 

Caterpillars. My objection as to their 

issuance or their offer would be for example, 

R-58-5, which has been offered as being the 

check in payment for the Caterpillars. The 
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check might --

MR. MITCHELL: I haven't asked him 

that. None of that which I have asked has 

been authenticated by 

MR. ODAM: Well, he 

MR. MITCHELL: Such as do you recognize 

the documents; do you recognise the signature? 

I offered them. I haven't gone into the 

scope. You know, he might have -- I am not 

precluding, but I haven't gone into that far 

with him. I intend to go into them to get 

the full scope of the man's knowledge. 

THE MASTEas I suppose Mr. Odam's 

problem is that it may be premature to offer 

them at this time. Obviously, if this 

witness fails to identify them as payments 

for rental on Caterpillara, then, what is 

the relevancy? 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Judge, I haven't 

asked him -- I haven't asked him what they 

went in for. I aaked the predicate queation 

of authentication. I would like to go back 

if they are admitted and find out if the 

recitals are correct, ~nd if he has any 

quarrel with that, If he doea --
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THE MASTER: Does each check contain 

a recital for rental for Cat? 

MR. MITCHELL: I think most of them --

Judse, I don't have them in hand and I don't 

recall. 

THE MASTER: Then, I take it that all 

you're offering them ~t this time is checks 

he received and you don't offer them as 

payment on the Caterpillars until you tie it 

in further? 

MR. ..l!TCHELLz That's right. That' s 

right, Judge. 

THE MASTER: All right. Now, they may 

or may not be proved relevant. You're 

correct, Mr. Odam, but I don't agree to 

proceeding in this manner. 

MR. ODAM: You don't object to me 

proceeding to ask him about the checks or 

you had rather I wait? 

THE MASTER: I had rather you wait 

because I think it's cross-examination. You 

may well show they don't have anything to 

do with the Caterpillars, but obviously to 

the intent that they recite Caterpillars, eve 

if that recital is denied, those checks come 
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MR. ODAM: I will limit my questions 

then for this voir dire for simply as my 

first question and that is to clarify for 

the record who filled out this information. 

THE MASTER: All right. That is fine. 

You can do that. You 1 ~e entitled to that. 

(By Mr. Odam) R-58-1, you just testified, I 

believe it was before we had the last series of 

questions for the Court, that Benavides Implement 

and Hardware, L~ your opinion, was filled out by 

Judge Carrillo? 

Yes, sir. 

And on the back it says for deposit. Can you 

identify who wrote that on there? 

I wrote this here, sir. 

58-2 is marked with 

A rubber stamp. 

A rubber stamp. And on the back, can you 

identify who made that deposit? 

I did, sir. 

I skip over to 58-5. Part of it looks like it's 

in pencil and part in ballpoint. Can you identif 

who filled in the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

there? 
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A That was Mr. Carrillo, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

You say Mr. Ramiro Carrillo or 0. P.? 

No, 0. P. 

What about the amount of money, who filled in 

that? 

I believe that looks like my handwriting, sir. 

You filled in where it sayF --

One thousand seven hun~red dollars, yes, sir. 

And did you fill in where it says rent on plows 

at the bottom on the left? 

Yes, sir. 

This check No. R-58-8. 

I filled out the amount of this, one thousand 

two hundred dollars. Where it says caeh, I didn't 

fill that out. 

Can you identify whose signature that would be? 

No, sir. 

In the lower left-hand come~ where it says 

memo on R-58-10, can you read what that says? 

Says pear burner and equipment. 

What? 

Pear burner. 

Pear? 

THE MASTER: To burn pears. 

Burn pears for the cattle. It's a pear burner. 
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Q Pear burner and equt,..ac? 

A Yee, elr. 

Q Two baadred and eeveoteen dollar• and fifty cente? 

A Yee, elr. 

Q And you filled out tbe .. ouat of aoney? 

A Tea, air. 

Q And you filled out tbe p .. r burner and equlpaent? 

A tea, air . 

M1. ODAH: Your Honor, the only 

objection .~ would have et thla ttae ae to 

tbeae ehec~, and it probably ia not 

I have no objection at thla tiae. 

'fiD KAS'l'&l.a They are acJaitted . 

well, 

(Whereupon, prevloua documents having 

been aarked for ldentiflcetlon aa a-58, 

1 Chrouab 10 were a4aitted.) 
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Now, the check R-58-1 which Mr. Odam was 

questioning you, Mr. Coulin& -- these checks 

were all paid to the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware in 1973 for the purposes indicated on 

the checks; am I correct, e~cept one which is 

R-58-9, which appears to be one paid January 18, 

'74 for thirty-five hundred and fifty dollars 

for rent on-- what is that D.C.? 

Looks like for D.C. 

For the D.C. That is the tractor, isn't that 

correct? 

Yes, sir. 

All right. Now, in each instance, I believe you 

have testified under oath that they were deposited 

in the Benavides Implement and Hardware account 

by you; am I correct? Look through them. 

MR. ODAM: For purpose of that question, 

you said they are all 1973 except that one. 

I think there is another one in there for 

the pear burner and equipment, January the 
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18th, 1974. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Counsel. I 

will ask him about that. 

Yes, sir. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) All right. Now, what account 

was that money put into? Now, by that money, so 

that we are specific --

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Counsel. 

May I have them back? 

(By Mr. Mitchell) What I would like for you to 

do, if you would, we lawyers got to have the 

record speak. If you would take the Exhibits 

R-58-1, 2 and go through those, please, sir, and 

call those out and tell us for the record, if you 

can, tell from the way you filled out the way 

you endorsed them, what account. Now, as a 

question, I am going to ask you ahead of that. 

You had at this time, I believe, two accounts, did 

you not? 

Yes, sir, 

You had one at the Rio Grande City bank, did you 

not? 

Yes, sir. 

And that bank would have bee~ named the what, 

exactly? 
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First State Bank and Trust. 

2217 r 

Right. And then you had, also 

One in the First State Bank in San Diego. 

Right. 

Okay. Now, if you can go through that and 

tell us where you put that -- where you made 

those deposits. 

R-58-1 was deposited at the Rio Grande Bank and 

Trust Company, sir. 

All right. That would have been a deposit made 

when? 

Well, the check was issued in February, sir. 

Of 1973? 

Yes, sir. 

And its amount would have been for how much? 

Twenty-five hundred dollars. 

Now, I am going to show you, please, E-162, which 

is the bank statement introduced through Mr. Bates 

in the First State Bank and Trust Company for 

February of 1 73. Do you see a deposit there for 

twenty-five hundred dollars? 

No, sir, it had to be included on that big 

deposit, sir. 

So, what you're saying is that there is a deposit 

made of three thousand five hundred and fifty-one 
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dollars for February of 1973, which you assume 

includes R-58-1 in the amount of twenty-five 

hundred; am I correct? 

Yes, sir, it says for deposit. It had to be. 

Absolutely, and my question is put to you for 

that reason. There is no deposit for twenty-five 

hundred. 

It's included -- got to be included in that one, 

sir. 

So, if I look at R-58-1 and twenty-five hundred 

and I l~ent back -- well, is there any other check 

here, February of 1973 that would make up that 

deposit? 

I don't know, sir. 

Well, if you will hold on a minute, we'll see. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have just a minute, 

Judge Meyers'/ 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. I thought some 

request was made as to deposit slips on that. 

Do you not have the deposit slips either 

here or coming? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I see I am going to 

need them now. 

THE MASTER: I was curious. We 

discussed them yesterday. 

----~------------------------------------------~~ 
<:IIAnL1~ ~E~~~~)~~~:-T~:s 1 
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MR. MITCHELL: Sure did, Judge. Sure 

did. 

Well, of course, may I state for the 

record, all of this was brought about by the 

witness's statement that there was no amount 

of money going into that account except the 

amount to cover these rayments and that about 

thirty minutes lat~r the bank statements were 

introduced showing, of course, that wasn't 

the fact 

MR. OuAM: I object to that statement, 

Your Honor. That is not his testimony. We 

tried to get about some root plows and about 

some payments for root plows and I, of 

course --

MR. MITCHELL: I will proceed in this 

way, Judge, if I might. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Couling, let me hand you 

1 am going to hand you back then certain other 

exhibits. I will give you, for example, E-109, 

which is a check for a thousand and six dollars, 

June the 5th of 1 73; hold them together because 

we are going to match them up. 

Have you got that in ynur lap? I am goi.ng 

to give you E-100, which is a check in the amount 
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of a thousand and fifty-one; am I correct, 1973 '! 

Yes, sir. 

All right. Now, E-100 and R-58-1 total what, 

please, sir? That would be for 1973, the month 

of February? How much would that be? 

Thirty-five fifty-one, sir. 

And it appears that in that bank statement for 

the First State Bank aud Trust Company of Rio 

Grande City, E-162 for the month of February, 

there was a deposit of three thousand five 

hundred and fiLcy-one dollars; am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

So that focusing in on February of 1973, you 

deposited in the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

account, the First State Bank and Trust Company 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo's check in the amount of 

twenty-five hundred, am I correct, dated --

Yes. 

And the check issued by Duval County, Claim No. 

D-453 in the amount of a thousand fifty-one 

dollars payable to the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware; am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And I assume you issued a check, or if you didn 1 t 

I want to know, in payment of the February payment 
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to Plains Im·,lement under your contract E-160. 

I don't know if I did, sir. 

Let me see if I can find that. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have just a minute, 

Judge Meyers? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, I ,,ant to show you what 

has been introduced as E-147, which appears to be 

your check -- I can't hardly read it, Mr. Couling. 

But it does appear to be fifteen hundred dollars 

to Plains Mach1nery Company drawn on the First 

State Bank and Trust Company, Rio Grande City; 

am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Does that fairly doubt -- I say that, the 

combination of E-147, R-58-1 and E-100 reflect 

correctly the transaction appearing on the bank 

statement or E-162 for February? 

Here is that check right there, sir. 

It would appear that that is accurately reflected? 

Yes, sir. 

So, then, in February of 1 73, you ended up with 

a deposit into the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware account of three thousand five hundred 

and fifty-one made up by Judge Carrillo's rent 
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check, county check and a check issued in the 

amount of fifteen hundred to Plains as payment 

on the contract with Plains being E-160 and 

showing a net profit for that mont~at any rate, 

of two thousand? 

The two thousand was a check made to B. D. Holt, 

to B. D. Holt for the roo~ plow, sir. 

THE MASTER: I didn't understand you, 

Mr. Couling. 

THE WITNESS: The two thousand dollar 

check that shows on the bank statement had to 

be a check that was paid to B. D. Holt for 

a root plow, sir. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) All right. Now, you said had 

to be? 

Yes. 

Do you have the check? 

Yes. 

All right. Let me have it. 

MR. MITCHELL: Oh, I am sorry. Counsel, 

I didn't mean to be impolite. I thought the 

witness said he had it. 

Your Honor, may I have the Court request 

counsel to deliver me :.:he check? 

THE MASTERs Do you have the check? 
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MR. ODAM: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have it, Your 

Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yea, sir. 

Off the record. 

(Whereupon, an oif-the-record 

discussion was had.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, may I aak 

counsel a question? 

THE MASTEll: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, may I ask 

counsel a question as regards Exhibit E-161, 

if those were the purchase orders for the 

root plows that the witness keeps alluding 

to and referring to? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. You want to introduce 

those as yours? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. I don't want to 

offer them as mine. I don't want to be 

married to them. Perhaps, for continuity 

of the record I might withdraw my 

objections to those exlibita previously made 

if counsel would be kind enough to reoffer 
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them as his E-161, so that the record speaks 1 

accurately to the facts --

MR. ODAK: E-161 baa been marked and 

that is a copy of a purchase order for root 

plow SND-8RP11-2S7A. The other piece of 

paper is not marked and it's for D8aP11256.\.. 

For purposes of contit~uity, I would have t "le 

256A marked as B-161-1 and offer those two. 

Well, E-161 has been offered and I would nJw 

offer 161-1. 

THE 1•..:ASTER. s Let' s make it dash A. A td 

you withdraw your objection to 161? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, I do, Judge. 

THE MASTER.: It's admitted. 

What about 161-A? 

MR. MITCHELL: Likewise. 

THE MASTEl.: It 1 s admitted. 

(Whereupon, said documents having 

been previously marked for identification 

as B-161 and E-161-A were admitted.) 

MR. ODAM: Off the record. 

(Whereupon, an off-the-record 
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discussion was had.) 

MR. ODAM: Now, the comment about theue 

two contracts which you have in your hand 

and you asked me if I had the check, I do 

have the check in my hand, February, 1973. 

You want to offer it no:~ your exhibit? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor. May '~-'e 

just attach it to his E-161? That goes in 

tandem to that. 

MR. ouAM: As to the rest of these 

checks --

THE MASTER: I think it should be marlted 

separately. 

MR. ODAM: You want to mark them as 

your 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, actually I don' 1: 

mind offering them as mine and making them 

mine, but for the continuity of the record, 

they are in the 161 series. Whatever the 

Court wants. I don't mind marking them as 

R exhibits. I think anyone reading the 

record -- I don't mind marking them and 

introducing them as mine, Judge Meyers, excep~ 

I think they should be in the 161-A series, 
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161, 161-A. I will do whatever the Court 

wants to do. 

THE MASTER: All right. That is fine. 

MR. ODAM: Can have them marked as his 

exhibits and you can offer them. 

MR. MITCHELL: Fine. You want to do 

that? 

MR. ODAM: L~t's see if I can get them 

in a chronological order. 
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(MarkPd for ident~flcation by th~ 

reoorter as EYhibtt 161B throu~h 16tH.) 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer E-16lB throu~h 

THE MASTER: ThPy 111re sdmtthd. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, slso for the 

~ur~oses of the recor~. Mr. Mitchell, I 

notice that thPs~. ss wPll as the Plains 

M8chinPry cheeks that Mr. Coultn~ wrote or 

the bank made are not as ~nod a photostatic 

co~tes as what they made earlier. 

Aooar,~tly, they ~ot a nPw machine 

from~e ttme those were m111de. We had I 

btolieve that Mr. Flusche this morntn~ had 

tele~honed Mr. Bates and had asked him to 

send, when he sends that other material, 

some bettPr ~hotostat~c cooies of these 

checks, olus to be sure that we have all of 

the Plains Machinery checks off the micro~ 

film, ~lus all of the B. D. Holt checks. 

So tf they are better ohotostattc 

eo~ies of thos~, I mt~ht substitute those, 

particularly those Plains Machinery checks 

and there mi~ht be some 111dditional Plains 

I 

•. I 

Mach{npry checks and mi~ht be some additional 

B.D. Holt checks, I don't know. 
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are at tht~ ~sus~ for housecleaning, may I 

also have ~ermisston to withdraw at an 

·~~ro~riate tfme the R-58 cheekA which are 

Judge Carrillo's checks and Aubstitute 

co~ies of those. 

THE MASTER: Ye~, of course. 

MR. MITCHELL: We certainly want to 

leave them in the recorcl for l!tll examination 

Counsel wou:i make of them and for them. 

MR. ODAM: And we would, of course, 

like to withdraw them at somf' tf.me to make 

copies for our ~ur~oses on cross-examination. 

MR. MITCHELL: No nb1ection. 

THE MASTER: That is fine. 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Now, Mr. Couli.ng, let me ~o back and start all 

over again l-tere. 

All ri~ht, let'~ -- I em ~oin~ to hand you 

E-161B, which annel!trs to be a check. If you will. 

look at t t, real carefully, fr,,m Btonevtdes 
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ImolPment an~ H~rdware to B. D. Holt Com0any for 

two thousand dollars in FPbruary 19th, 197~. am 

I corrf'ct? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q All riJ!;ht, no~1, f_s that thf' check that you earli.er 

referred to, that an.,arently was written on the 

Bensv-1 des ImnlemPnt and Hsrd,.·are sccount, First 

State Bank snd Trust Comuany, February, 197~, •~ 

'J)er thP E~hibit 162 that I handed you? 

A Yes, sir, it looks like the ssme one. 

Q All ri.ght, so tl,< t 1.n summsry then, takin~ for 

e7am'J)le as a month, 1.n the Benavtdes lm'J)lement 

and Hardware Com'J)any account at the First State 

Bank, the deoosit of three thousand dollars, 

three thousand five hundred and fifty-one dollars 

are com.,osed of,now, you recall the check that 

we have already tntroduced into evidence bein~ 

R-58, one from J~e Carrillo to Benavides lm"Ple-

ment and Hadware and chPck -- and the check is 

labeled what, Cat rental and eaufoment rental? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q And that has rPference to what, olease, s-Ir? 

Does that have reference to thP rental of thP 

Cateroiltar and thP two oiece~ of eauioment 

ourchased that you keeo referrtn~ to, do you 
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know, the ~lnw, the root nlow? 

A I didn't have a contract for rental. All that 

3 wa~ m~de and the ~mount was ~tven to me to make 

4 un for the oayment that was due to B. D. Holt 

s and P1Rins MRchinery. 

6 Q It was a rental,that is what it says? 

7 A I didn't have it rented to 0. P. Carrillo, sir. 

B Q You didn't? 

9 A No, sir. 

10 Q When you got tl-tl' check, did you sey, "Judp:e 

11 Carrillo, you ~~ ~uldn't ~ut thAt Cat rental or 

12 eQuioment rentel on it"? 

13 A No, sir, we didn't discuss thet. He just satd 

14 this should be the amount that takes cere of the 

15 payment that is due to B. D. Holt end Plains 

16 Machinery. 

n Q You did de~osit it to your account? 

U A Yes, sir. 

~ Q And you wrote a check on it? 

~ A Yes, sir, 

~ Q And the check for fifteen hundred dollars to 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Plains Machinery, check number one to Plains 

Eftui.oment to buy those two Cateroillars 36•A-470 

and 16-A-471 tn the name of Benavtdes Imolement 

11nd Hardware? 
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A y,.~. si.r. 

2 Q And ~o, thP chPck for two thousand dollars 

3 that is February, 1973, which you wrote out of 

4 Benavides Im~lPment and Hardware Rccnunt to 'ay 

5 fnr two root nlows as shown by contracts to 

6 purchase E-161 and E-161A. E-161 bein~ the con-

7 tract of ~urchas~ for Benavides Im~lPment and 

8 Hardware, am I readin~ it corrPctly? 

9 A Yel'l, !'dr. 

10 Q From B. D. Holt, 1.s thl: who that h? Who dld 

11 you buy it froc. do you know? 

12 A Ri~ht here. (IndtcatinJt,) 

13 Q YP.s, B. D. Holt and Com~any, Cor~us Christi, Te~as. 

14 A I didn't buy them. I teatif1ed that who adered 

15 thPm. 

16 Q But they are in the name of Benavides Im~lPment 

17 atd Hardware? 

~ A I didn't siJtn the contract, sir. 

19 Q Sir? 

20 A I didn't si~n that contrltct. 

21 Q You took title to it and oai.d for i.t, I thou~ht, 

22 df.dn 1 t you? 

~ A I didn't si~n it, l'lir, none of them, none of 

24 them. 

25 Q How about 161A, is that 1tlso ourchased •• that 
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also ~urchas~d for B~navide~ Im~lPment and 

Hardware, is that correct? 

A Yes, sir, and it was vertif~ed that it was •• 

the order was ~laced by Ramiro Carrillo, sir. 

Q I know that is what it says on the document, 

but th~ document, the title ts in the name of 

Benavfdes Im~lement and Hard•~re? 

A I didn't si~n it, sir. 

Q Doesn't the contract eay Benavides Im~lement 

and Hsrdware? 

A Yes, !'!ir. 

Q It doesn't say thlt the tltle is in the name of 

Ramtro Carrillo, does it? 

A No, sir. 

Q It doesn't say the tltlP fs tn the name of 0. P. 

Carrillo, does it? 

A No, sir. 

Q Likewis~, It doesn't S8Y on E-161 the title that 

that one is in the name of 0. P. Carrillo, ft 

is Benavides Im~lement and Hardware, isn't it? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And the checks came out of Benavides Im~lement 

~tnd Hardware to ~•Y for the two rc-ot ~lows l!tnd 

the two Caterotllars, am I correct? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q Th~ lP~al tttl~. all of whtch were tn the \ 
I 

name of Benavldes Imol~mf'nt and HRrrlwere? I 

A YeA, !!tr. 

Q And at least as to E-161, that was orlor -- that 

was tn FPbruary of 73, ortor to th~ time that 

you said you had a 0 artnPrshln with Ramtro 

Carrillo and 0. P. Carrillo? 

A What do you m~an ortor? 

Q You testifi~d in May 6th, 19 --

MR. MITCHELL: I l!lm sorry, I am 

incorrect. I withdraw that. 

THE MASTER: LPt m~ ask Mr. Couting 

a ouestion: Mr. Coultng, ar~ -- the equio-

ment of this -- is ther~ any sort of 

certificate of title to {t llke there ts 

to an automobile? 

A I don't know, Air. I didn't ~et anything after 

they were oaid, I ~idn't get any oaoers or noth-

MR. MITCHELL: Jud~e. the closest that 

we comP to that woulrl be the 0 ackage, the 

documents issued -- Introduced as E-160 

which are the financing gtat~ment' end the 

full documents of title as well as the con-

ditional sales notice and the fotlowuo which 
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wnuld be our R-50. 

Q (By Mr. MftchPll:) In li~ht of thP nupst4on 

out to you by the Court, Mr. Cnultn~. do you 

know of any other documents on thesP two Cater-

oillars other than those reflected in E-160 or 

in R-50? 

A From PlJiins Machinery, sir? 

Q Or any -- from anywhere? 

A I signed a releasP to 0. P. I don't see it in 

there, so I don't know what it was. 

Q So there mi~ht be a release of that eaui~ment 

to 0. P •• I su0 oose, 0rior to the time or after 

the time therP was a default on E-160? 

A I dnn't know ,.·hat date it wat~, sir. 

Q A 11 ri~ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud~e. I mi~ht give 

these to the Court. 

(Handed to the Court.) 

Q Now, you are not testifyin~ that 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, excuse me, 

if I mhht. 

MR, MITCHELL: EycuRe me. 

MR. ODAM: The last ftUestion oosed to 

the witness asked if he knew that there werP 
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E-160 an~ the document that ts marked R-50. 

We do have some paoers includtn~ some 

notes rec~tvable cards from B. D. Holt •• 

correction, from Plains Machinery and I 

would not want it to -- we would offer tho~~ 

at a later time. They might support the 

that ouestion right there and it might 

complete the record at this point. 

These could ~o ahead and be just like 

we did on t•-ese cheeks from B. D. Holt, put 

them in and make them a oart of the entire 

paeka~e now, or if not, if Mr. Mitchell 

would orefer not to, we could comolete thi~ 

at a later point. 

I do think there are some other 

paoers that would fill out R-50 and R-60 

in the li~ht of the last ouestion. 

My ouestion is, Mr. Mitchell, would 

you like to ~o ahead and droo those in the 

record now? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, but thank you, 

Counsel, I do thi.nk in AnswPr to the- Court's 

ouestion we both have to answer that -- I 

was attPmotin~ to answer th~ ou~stion throup,h 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840, 



I , 

I 
2 ' 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2236 I ·-- ---------------------- -J 

the witnes~ ~nd I aoorectste that, because 

the Court was inqulrin~ concernin~ the title 

document~ and certainly at such time that 

you feel you<want to introduce them, it 

would be relevant. 

MR. ODAM: All ri~ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I continue, Judge? 

THE MASTER: Y~s. nlease do. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) My last ouestlon to you was 

you are not testifying under oath that in 19 --

MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. 

Q Mr. Coulin~. let me ask you this, this business 

of the ourchase of the Caterolllar tractors didn't 

arise until January of 1973, did it? 

A Yes, si.r. 

Q In other words, none of these checks that ere 

i.ntroduced tn evi.~ence orevfously and I say none 

of thPm, I am ~otn~ to hand them to you. 

I am just going to call them off by number, 

None of these checks, 151, whtch is in 1971, 152, 

which is tn 1971, 15~. which is in 71, those 

are checks to you by Jud~e Carrillo and 154 in 

71 end 155 which is in 71 and 156 which fs in 71, 

and 157, which is in 71, or 65 which is in 71, 

or 69 which is in 71 u- excuse me, Mr. Cou1ing, 
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111nd 75 which ~s tn 71, And 76 which ls f.n 71, 

no, ~2. which is in 71, none of those 

22~7 

2 I 11nd 70 

3 had to do with the purchase of any tractors. 

4 A No, sir, thls is in the First State Bank of San 

5 Di.e~o. 

6 Q Yes, not only are they not on the account of 

7 which the checks were issued for the purchase of 

8 th~ two root olows and the Cateroillars, that t~ 

9 the one down at Rio Grande City, they are not 

10 even on thAt Account and they Are, of coursP, 

II three years nrt ~ to the purchAse of the Cater-

12 pillars. They ere in 71, am I correct? 

13 A Well, did I --

14 Q It could heve nothin~ to do with the purchase 

15 of the Caterpillars? 

16 A Did I ever testf.fy tlwt th.-y did? 

17 Q No, I went the record clear. 

18 A No, sir. 

19 Q I think you did. 

20 A No, sir. 

21 Q I want to be sur.-. 

22 A I didn't test~fy on those checks thet they had 

23 to do anythin~ with the caterpillar•. 

24 Q You didn't tf.'stify that those checks you are 

25 holding iasu.-d in 71 were for thP purpose of 
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ril'pin~ off thP county for paym@nt on Cater-

pf_llllr tracttrl'l, thP tttl.Pof whf_ch was t.n Jud~e 

C~trri llo? 

A No, sir, not from the Fir~t State Bank of San 

Dte~o. str. 

Q But at any r8tf', we want thP rP.cnrd abundantly 

clPar, those chPck~ that I ju~t went throu~h, 

thoRP. arP all the ones t~at are in evidence? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q That I can f1nd. 

A YE"A, Atr. 

Q They have nothtn~ to do, do t~ey, with the ~ur• 

rhase of any Caterpillar tractor for Jud~e 

C~trri.llo, the montes issued out of Duval County 

and ~oin~ into the B~navtdes Implement amHard• 

warP and checks written by you to Jud~e Carrillo? 

A Not for the Cater~illar~. no, sir. 

Q Or the root plows? 

A No, tltir. 

Q Because the root nlow!! contract, one of them 

which is dated 2-6-73, and that f_s E-171 111nd the 

othPr one, E-171A, which i.!'l datt"d 12-4-72, is 

that correct? 

A Yl'S, sir, thllt h correct, si.r. 

Q Nnw, as to thP.I!IP. checks ~?;oi.n~ to Jud~e Carrillo, 
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look at, for eyam~le, E-157, you have ~tv~n him 

on July the 2nd, 1971, and heo l~tbels it tubin~, 

4 iRn 1 t that correct? 

5 A I labeled it tubtn~. yes, sir. 

6 Q You labeled tt tubtng? 

7 A Yes, str. 

8 Q But tt is your testimony today under oath that 

9 there was no contract or transaction tnvolvin~ 

10 the sate of tubfn~ by J~e C~rrtllo to you for 

11 ni.ne hundred an" etghty-two dollars on July of 

12 71? 

13 A I dldn't ,ret any tubing for him, slr. 

14 Q It is in your handwrttin~? 

15 A Yes, si.r. 

16 Q And 156, is a cheek from you to Jud~e Carrillo 

17 for a thousand dollars on 5-?0~1971, and that 

18 ~ays store counter from C~rrtllo Dru~ Store, from 

19 0. P. Carrillo Drug Store? 

20 A Yes, str. 

21 Q That ts what you ~ut in that check? 

22 A Yes, sir. 

23 Q And, of course, you do kno"' Jud~e C11rrlllo was 

24 

25 

u 
going in the drug store business abo t that time, 

don't you? 
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Yf'S, si.r. 

2 Q And you do know, tn fact, that hf' dfd acQuire 

3 a butldtn~ with counters, dru~ store ·~~liances 

4 and so forth, don't you? 

s A With counters, yes, sir. 

6 Q And, but you are tetlin~ the Court, that you dld 

7 not buy one nf those counter~ from htm as that 

8 checks, E-156, indteates? 

9 A No, sfr, I didn't, I did not buy a~htn~ from 

10 hi.m, sir. 

11 Q And lookin~ at F 155 which is another check from 

12 you to Jud~e Carri11o, that dtd you ~ut that --

13 is that in your handwrt tin~ f.n the ln...- lefthanc' 

cornPr on the face of the check? 

15 A Yes , 8 i r. 

16 Q Loan? 

17 A YPs, sir. 

18 Q Sut that i.s not a loan etther, I don't su~~ose? 

19 A Nn, s tr. 

~ Q E~cuse me. The check goes from BenAvides Im~le-

21 mPnt and Hardware to Jud~e Carrillo? 

22 A RtJ!;ht. 

~ Q It is not a loan? 

24 A No, I'! f. r. 

~ Q Nnw, E•153 ts a cheek, October the 5th of 71. 
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for rent, tl,et i~ just 
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A I don't -- I don't know if I ~t~nPd th~t there 

rent or not, I don't know -- I don't believe it 

looks like my handwrttin~. s~r. 

Q But if tt -- but you ere saying it 1ust wasn't 

so? 

A No, sir. 

Q And it certainly had nothin~ to do with the our-

chase of eny tractors? 

A No, str. 

Q And it certainly didn't have anythin~ to do with 

the purchase of any root olowR? 

A No, sir. 

Q All rh;ht. I am tempted to ask the nuestton: 

What was it for. tell me. 

A What that money that was bills werP qubmitted to 

the county and that was submfttE>d Pither by myself 

or Cleofus, whtch was money that 0. P. wanted. 

That is the way we funneled the checks out to 

htm. sir. 

Q I think tn sum and substance is that was money 

that was issued or represented by checks comin~ 

from the county to your bust~~ss, the Benavides 

Imolement and H~ware 1n 1971 and the county 
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issued it on the basis of a false or fraudulent I 

i.nvotee on a orinted Benavides Implement and 

HArdware tnvoi~e. either e~ecutPd by you or 

Cleofus. pursuant to a fraudulent scheme to ~ 

th~ ~ounty to issue it and you say for the pur­

t'Ose of takin~ thatmoney, when you once ~ot it, 

and the scheme worked, and givtn~ it to Jud~e 

Carrillo? 

A Those are the checks for them, sir. 

Q All rt~ht. 

MR. c:·~: Your Honor, if this line 

of ~uesttontn~ is to continue, it seems 

like it is totally repetitious of every 

~uestion that I aske~ of Mr. Coulin~ on 

direct e~amination. The purpose of the 

check, whether it did what it dfd, it looks 

like Mr. Mitchell is ~oin~ back for pa~e 

after page over what I trted to develop as 

the pUrtlose of thosP checks and I would 

object, if this is goin~ to continue, on 

the grounds of repetition just because it 

is takin~ time to do what I tried to do on 

direct. I ob .1 ec t on the J!;round s of repet i-

tion. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, I pardon me, 
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Judg~ Meyl>rs. 

THE MASTER: It s~ems repetitious to 

don't --

MR. MITCHELL: It is, JudgP M~yers, to 

developed th8t t~stimon~ exceot th~t I now, 

in the oroper -- or in the context I believe 

have th~ contract to ourchase for th~ e~uio-

ment, et ct>tera. I bt>lfeve the ftuesttnns of 

the credibility of the man being raised, I 

think the auestions are orooer and perhaps 

are to a cert~tin amount reot>titlon touchin~ 

on his credtbfllty. 

THE MASTER: W~ll, of course. you c8n 

reexamine and cross-examine a witness on 

ortor tP8timony to see if you can change it. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yt>s, !! tr. 

THE MASTER: But oerhaps it could b~ 

done wtth a little les!! repetition, I don't 

know. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Judge Mey~r!!, 

I must confess that I have the distinct 

recollectton, and I am n~t 8ayfng it is 

correct, that this wftnes~ te8tified that 
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thesP seriPB of ch~cks, the ones I have 

_ _!~~t 

just ~onP through, were for the ~ur~ose of 

osyin~ for that bulldo2er and that root 

olow. I m~~ht have b~en mistaken, but th~n 

{f they were not, then, nf course, the 

obvious Question ls why, and that is why I 

man develoo a comol{csted comorehensive 

fraudulent scheme iust to take the fruits 

of that scheme and ~ive them to somebody 

THE MASTER: I think that oupsti.on is 

~erfectly valid. 

MR. MITCHELL: It ha9 ~ot to be asked, 

Jud g~ Meyers. 

THE MASTER: I suooose the ob1ection, 

the oart of the ob1ectlon I A!!:ree with, tt'l 

oerha~s it is over-re~etttious to !!:O over 

in detail buildin~ u~ to that nuestion. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: All of the nuestions that 

MR. MITCHELL: All rijlht, Jud~e MPyen, 

I will ltmlt my euestions. I only have one 

other and I am trytn~ to limit th~m. if it 
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~lease the Court. and for Counnel, you 

understand only to thosP where there have 

bP~n ~enctl notations on the ch~cks. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: Again, to ~oint u~ the 

credibility factor. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) I beli~;e I asked you about 

152 

MR. MITCHELL: WHh that understandinJ~;, 

Judge, I have only one. 

THE t• ... ~STER: Yes. sir. 
I 

Q All right, with 152, the check dated Se~tember 22ndj, 

1971, in the amount of seven hundred dollars from 

you, that is Benavides Imolement and Hardware, 

to Judge o. P. Carrillo, and ~t states there what, 

r~nt on trucks, doesn't it, Mr. Coutin~? 

A Yes, sir, but --

Q Wait a minut~. lf't me ask you a nuPsti.on ~tbout 

it. Is that there in your han~writing? 

A And the one that is scratched out was my h•nd• 

writfn~. too, sir. 

Q In other word~, actually what tt is, you dis• 

tlnctly recall it, the one saying legal advice 

and it ~~~ears to be stricke~, doesn't it? 

A YPs, sir. 
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21.461 ----- ----·~-+ 

I 

3 Q And your testimony is here tod8y there w8s no 

4 oayment on any truck? 

5 A I didn't rent no truck from Mr. 0. P. Carrillo, 

6 sir. 

7 Q Did Judge Carrillo have anything on you? Were 

8 you fri~htened of him? lfas therP any reason why 

9 you would take money that you got out of this 

10 money•makin~ machine that you and Cleofus had 

II gof.ng, Mr. CoulL.g, and once you've got it, mce 

12 you got the money ~ive it to htm? 

13 A No, sir, w• were --

14 Q JuAt good fr{ends? 

15 A At that time Wf.' wer• the best of friends, sir. 

16 

(Discussion off th• record,) 
17 

18 THE MASTER: It is 8 good time for a 

19 break, Mr. Mitchell. 

20 MR. MITCHELL: If I could 1ust finish 

21 thh 

22 THE MASTER I thought you were going 

23 to a new o~trea. 

24 MR. MITCHELL: No, Judge, but I do 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 25 ·~~reciate that, Judge Meyer~. __L 
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Q Didn't you buy a piekuo from him about that tim~? 

A Y~!ll, 9ir. 

Q L~t me spe if I cAn find tht> ~ickuo that you 

bou~ht from him shout that time and I'm talktn~ 

shout thto ti.,~ now that thiR check E-152 was 

(DtAcusslon off th~ record.) 

Q Look at R-49, is that it? 

A I have got to see the rest of the otekup, sir. 

Q W Pll, does i.t lo...,k like the one that you bought 

from him? 

A I have go to see the side, sir. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

Q Your testimony is you can't reco~nir.e that that 

ts the one you bou~ht? 

A I believe it orobably was, when I bou~ht it, at 

the be~tnnin~, but I didn't buy it new, I boup;ht 

it, f.t was old when I bought it. 

Q From Judge Carrillo? 

A I didn't -- t don't deny it, I boup;ht one from 

him. 

Q All right, about the time of that cheek? 

A I don't remember the date. sir. 
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it wa~ that ch~ck or not. 

Q It was In 1971? 

A T don't know i.f {t waA in 7i ,.,r tftter on, I can't 

say. 

Q Hnw much di~ you ~ive htm for it? 

A I mi~ht have Riven him s~ven or f~ve hundre~. 

I don't know. 

Q Well, as a matter of fact, th~ check we _1ust 

looked at, E-152 in September of 71, is for how 

much? 

A Seven hundre~ ~c'lars, and it states for rent 

of truck so I don't know lf f.t wa s the one for 

the truck or not. 

Q Mr. Coulin~. do you remember that as s matter of 

fact, that was the oayment for that truck? 

A I don't remember, sir. 

Q In the amount of seven hundred dollars? 

A I don't remember, si.r, I can't say if I did or 

not. 

Q All ri~ht, but we do establf.~h that you bou~ht 

the truck? 

A YeR, sir. 

Q It was bou~ht in 71? 

A I can't say 71., I don't rememb~r thP d.!tP. 

Q And you did a~ree to pay between seven hundred 
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and whet was your testimony? 

2 A s~ven end five hundred doll8r~, but I don't 

3 

4 Q Ri~ht, but you~~ ~uite sur~ that that Exhibit 

s 152 was money that you cranked -- or you or 

6 Cleofus cranked out of the county end gave to 

7 Judge Carrillo because you A11 w~r~ just close 

8 friends? 

9 A Yee, sir. 

10 Q All ri~ht. 

11 

THE MASTER: It i ~ br~ak t t.mt> now, 
12 

13 

MR. MITCHELL: Y~~. Judge Mt>yers, I 
14 

believe t~et's all I have recttAls on. 
15 

Thank you, Judge. 
16 

17 (Whereu~on the hearing was in recess 

18 from 10:00 a.m. until 10:20 a.m. of the 

19 same day.) 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

____ 40__... -.::::..--------------------- ------------- -

1--------------------------------+-
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WANETTE ORISKA, 

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn 

upon her oath to tell the truth, the whole truth and 

nothing but the truth, then testified as follows, 

to-wit: 

THE MASTER: All Llght. Have a seat 

there and give you~ name to this gentleman 

and spell it, please, ma'am. 

THE WITNESS: Wanette, W-A-N-E-T-T-E, 

Oriska, 0-~-I-S-K-A. 

THE MASTER: You can have a seat in 

the chair. 

EXAMINATION -----------
17 BY MR. ODAM: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

Z4 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Would you please state, again, your full name, 

for the record. 

It's Wanette Oriska. 

Is it Miss or Mrs.? 

Mrs. 

Mrs. Oriska, my name is John Odam. I just met 

you a few minutes ago. Could you please explain 

------~--------------------------------------------------------------l--
1 
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A 

2251 

for the record what prompted you to be here 

today, other than the subpoena that the Departmen 

of Public Safety patrolman just gave you? 

I work as a bookkeeper and secretary for Plains 

Machinery Company. 

And did someone talk with you this morning, either 

Plains or from the Attorney General's office 

about coming down here? 

They called me from down here. 

And do you know who that would be? Would that 

be Mr. Flusche, perhaps; a man or a woman, do 

you know? 

It was a man. 

And they asked you to --

To come down here this morning at 10:00. 

Okay, fine. 

And you say you work for Plains Machinery 

Company? 

Yes, sir. 

Here in Corpus Chriati? 

Corpus Christi, yes, sir. 

How long have you been employed with them? 

Four years. 

And your position is that of bookkeeper? 

Yes, sir. 

CIIATIIAM & ASSO( 1.-\HS 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY SANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840' 



Q 

2 

3 A 

4 

5 

6 Q 

7 

8 

9 A 

10 Q 

11 A 

12 Q 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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And what are your responsibilities, 
I 

generally, 1 

of being a bookkeeper? 

Well, that is kind of vast, but -- well, I make 

out the notes and cash receipt reports. Well, 

just everything about keeping the books. 

Would it be your job, for example, to post when 

the money comes in that is ~pplied to sales, 

et cetera? 

Yes, sir. 

Who are you a secretary to? 

Mr. Kurtz. 

Is that Mr. Red Kurtz? 

Red Kurtz. 

And what is his position with the company? 

He is the store manager. 

And at time I would suppose in your position of 

bookkeeper and secretary, that you would post and 

make entries, et cetera, pursuant to his 

instructions to you, is that correct? 

MR. ODAM: This is one document and 

mark it with the next Examiner's number. 

(Whereupon, said document was 

marked for identificati~n as Examiner's 

Exhibit 163-A and B.) 
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15 

16 

17 

18 A 

19 

20 

21 Q 

22 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 

MR. ODAM: Mark this Xerox 164, A and 

B. 

(Whereupon, said document was marked 

for identification as Examiner's Exhibit 

No. 164-A and B.) 

MR. ODAM: Mark this 165. 

(Whereupon, said document was marked 

for ident~~ication as Examiner's Exhibit 

No. 165.) 

(By Mr. Odam) Mrs. Driska, I show you what the 

court reporter has marked as 163-A and B which 

appears to be a machine copy. Could you identify 

this generally for the record. 

This is a copy of the one I keep in my office 

after I get money in and deposit it in the bank. 

I post it to this. 

And the pencil markings on there are markings 

that you personally made? 

Yes. 

And where is the original c~py of this machine 

copy? 
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A I have it in my safe at Plains Machinery Company. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

And this 163-A and B, is B -­

This is just the back page. 

The back page, or back side of the card. 

It's a card like this and it's the back page. 

Back side? 

Back of Page 1. 

So, actually this would be in your file simply 

as one piece of paper? 

Card like that? 

Card, a yellow ~ard. 

Uh-huh. 

And the entries that are made here on this card 

which you say that you made, they also appear 

on the original yellow card which is back in the 

safe, is that correct? 

Yes. 

And this 163-A and B, did you have occasion 

yourself to make this Xerox copy of the card 

this morning to bring with you? 

Yes. 

And also, for further identification, could you 

identify in whose handwriting this particular 

card 163-A is? 

Benavides Implement and Hardware Company. 
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And this would be for what items of purchase? 

Two used Caterpillar D-8 tractors, Serial No. 

36A470 and 36A143. 

And what is the date of the note that this atarts 

up a note receivable card on? 

December 13th, 1972. 

MR. ODAM: Your llonor, we would offer 

into evidence E-lh3-A and B as being the 

card which shows the payments made on the 

Caterpillars which have been in question 

thus far kept by Mrs. Oriska. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, for the 

purposes of the record, I suppose this is 

as good a time as any to reassert our 

continuing objections to the offer of 

evidence which is beyond the formal notice 

and the amended notice and the scope of the 

term of Judge Carrillo for 1975 and also 

that the act as set out in these 

specifications relates to nonjudicials. 

With those objections out of the way, 

I would like to ask some questions on voir 

dire to determine if there are any other 

technical objections tc the offer, Your 

Honor. 
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THE MASTER: Well, you may certainly 

2 do that. The objections are overruled, 

3 Mr. Mitchell. 

4 Off the record. 

5 

6 (Whereupon, an off-the-record 

7 discussion was had.) 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 V 0 I R ---- ~!!! 
14 

15 BY MR. MITCHELL: 

16 

17 Q 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Mrs. Oriska, Mr. Odam asked you as regards the 

Exhibit 163-A and I am going to show you what 

has already been in evidence as 160, which 

appears to be a contract between your company; 

that is the Plains Machinery and Benavides 

Implement and Hardware, and that contract, 160, 

the Judge has allowed in evidence, and it shows 

that it's dated December 14r~l, 1972 and it called 

for payments in the amount of fifteen hundred 
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A 

Q 

A 

dollars pretty well as shown on this little 

ledger sheet, 163-A and B, doesn't it? 

Uh-huh. 

225~ 

And what I want to ask you is: As a matter of 

office practice and procedure, is the contract 

such as 160, is that information reproduced on 

this type of a card, note receivable card as you 

have shown and testifi~d to in 163-A and B? 

Yes, on every note, because that is how, you 

know, we see where a customer stands. 

Q Right. 

A ·You know, when it's getting paid for. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Right. And each note receivable form, of course, 

that shows you also at any given time what Plains 

Company, Machinery Company has done in terms of 

their business, how •uch money they have got 

outstanding. 

True. I make my report from it, also, you know, 

at the end of the month. 

Sure. And tax returns and so forth. You rely on 

this data? 

Uh-buh. 

I will ask you this: The material appearing -­

the data appearing on 163-A ••.s to the description 

of the tractors, that ls correct; it's taken 
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correctly off the contract, is it not? 

Uh-huh. 

As well as the number of payments? 

(Witness nods head yes.) 

THE MASTER: Excuse me, Mrs. Oriska. 

It's important that you answer rather than 

nod because we are maklng a record. It 

needs to be compl£te. 

(By Mr.Mltahell)This gentleman is taking it down, 

Mrs. Oriska, and the Court has asked you to speak 

up. 

I say even as regards to the payments, you 

will notice on E-160 there are twenty-six payments 

at fifteen hundred dollars each with a final I 

payment of one eighty-six and you have brought 

that over on this card, E-163-A, is that correct? 

Yes, air. 

And also it's true with the buyer, Benavides 

Implement and Hardware, that is correctly reflect d, 

is it not, on 163-A? 

Yes, sir. 

The buyer's address? 

Yes. 

And also the number of -- th~ amount of payments 

that he makes with the date of that payment and 
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a posting reference, which I suppose is some sort 

of interoffice reference that you have in your 

business? 

Yes, that is my cash receipt report number, if I 

ever need to go back to it. 

You can always pick it up from there, is that 

correct? 

Yes. 

And I notice it's written up here at the top, the 

insurance certificate 100285. Now, that 

corresponds on the 160 to an insurance certificate 

does it not? 

Yes. 

Which is labeled conditional sales notice of 

insurance; am I correct? 

Yes. 

So that your card is shown as E-163-A shows that 

certificate number and ties into that package, 

is that correct? 

Yes. 

Now, I will hand you what appears to be another 

contract, R-50, covering the same equipment, but 

to a different buyer. You see that. This has 

been introduced into evidence and allowed by the 

Court; you see that? 
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A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Now, you notice it has also the same conditional 

sales notice of insurance on it? 

(Witness nods head yes.) 

Do you not, E-160? 

Yes. 

Were you asked to bring a 1· .dger card that 

applied to the contract reflected by R-50? 

No, I wasn't asked to bring anything. 

Well, could you pull that same ledger card on 

R-50 and bring ~hat if we asked you to? 

Yes. 

Or could you do me a favor and look at these 

checks -- excuse me. Let me get them marked, 

please, ma'am. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would like to have 

these marked, please. 

(Whereupon, said documents were marked 

for identification as Respondents' Exhibits 

60-1 through 7.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I pass the 

witness. Our objection stands as previously 

noted by the --
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THE MASTER: They are overruled and 

the exhibits are admitted, E-163-A and B. 

(Whereupon, said documents marked 

for identification as Examiner's Exhibits 

163-A and B were admitted.) 

!!!!:!!!!!!.Q.! 
(CONTINUED) 

15 BY MR. ODAM: 

16 

17 Q 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 A 

Mrs. Driska, I show you what has been marked 

as 164-A and 164-B, which is a Xerox copy and 

also hand you an original yellow copy which is 

not marked as an item, but it appears to be an 

original of it. 

Can you identify, first of all, what is the 

Xeroxed copy, 164-A? Can you generally describe 

what that is? 

Well, this is our notes receivable card and this 
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23 Q 

24 A 

25 

is the original that is kept Amarillo. 

When you say this is the original, you're 

to the yellow card? 

Well, the typing -- this is the yellow card which 

is the original that is kept in our Amarillo 

office. 

Is 164-A 

This is a copy of it. 

Okay. Now, is 164-A, is that -- well, it appears 

to be on the Benavides Implement and Hardware, 

on the same two Caterpillars we are talking 

about. Do I take it then from what you're saying 

about Amarillo, Amarillo keeps a card and you 

keep a card; could you explain that? 

Well, Amarillo is our home office. You know, 

that is where our books are kept. I mean I keep 

them here, but they keep them for all nine stores 

and I get the money in Corpus and I deposit it 

in the bank and I post it to my card. I keep a 

card just like this. 

Which we just introduced in evidence and which --

The other one. 

Yes, ma'am. And then how does --

I send my -- it's on my cash receipt report, this 

number out here to the right and I send it on to 
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MR. ODAM: We would offer into evi-

dence, for just the fullnPss ~nd com~lete-

ness of the record, Your Honor, the card 

which fs keot tn the home office tn Amarillo 

which also shows the sMne pByments based 

upon the informati.on Rent from Mr~. Drtska 

for eomnleteness of the record. 

I aooears to be identical with the last 

Exhibit th~~ went in, but it iB the card 

that they keep in Amarillo on the same 

ectui~ment. 

THE MASTER: All rhht, but you don't 

intend to offer the ort~tnal, you intend to 

offer the copy that has been marked. 

MR. ODAM: I have present the ori~inal. 

THE MASTER: For Mr. Mitchell's com~art-

son, oerhaos. 

(Discu~ston off the record.) 

' 
MR. MITCHELL: The same objeetf.on as 

previously made, Jud~e. 

THE MASTER: That i~ the four basic 

objeettons that you previously referred to? 

I 
I 

----~----------------------------------------------------------t 
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MR. MITCHELL: Y~s, ~tr. 

THE MASTER: Th~ ob1ections are over-

3 ruled and the E~hibit is admitted, that is 

4 
E~hibit E-164A and B. 

5 Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mrs. Driska, I ~how you what 

6 has been marked as E•l65 and ask you if you 

7 cl'ln identify E-165 for the r··cCKl, olease, ma'am. 

8 A It wtll take some doin~. 

9 Q First ~f all, let me assist you in that. Who 

10 t~ the oarty tnvolved 'ln this oarticular card? 

II A This is 0. P. Lbrrillo and this is our notes 

12 rece'tvable card. 

13 Q And would this be a cooy of 

14 A This is a cooy of the one I have in my safe 

15 no, I have this tn my book, t~is ts an ooen not~. 

16 Q Okay, and this ts a cooy of an ooen note that f~ 

17 back at Plains Machinery rt~ht now? 

18 A Yes, sir. 

19 Q And the ~ostin~s that ar~ made thrre are these 

20 oostin~a that you 0 ersonally made? 

21 A These oostln~s are mine, yes. 

22 Q And the e~uloment described there, does it 

23 fndtcat~ on the card what the Pouioment fs? 

24 A It is two used Cater~illar D-R tractors, serial 

25 
I numbeT ~6-A-470. 

----~-----------------------------------------------------L I 
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Q And I tak@ tt that the 

_____________ 2,5 
purpos~ of that card is 

a~atn to poRt when oayments wt>rf!' made~ 

A Ytts, sir. 

Q On those particular tractors? 

A Ye-s, sir. 

Q All ri~ht. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, we would offer 

into t>vidt>nct> E·165 aR a cooy of what she 

k@eps back at her offtcP and she has in her 

records ~t Plains Machinery. 

MR. M .. ::.'CHELL: May I havt> _iust a 

minute, Jud~e? 

THE MASTER Certainly. 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud,re, wt> object to the 

offer of 165 on the ~rounds ~revlousty 

stated. 

THE MASTER: The objection {s overruled 

Q Now, Mrs. Driska, I would likt> to refer back, 

if we mi~ht, to the 

(Discus~ton off the r•cord.) 

Q The first ontt we offerP.d into evidence, and 

whi.ch ts admi.tted, is $ which h a car~ that 

you kept which was for Benavides lmplt>mt>nt and 
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Hardware whtch you kel)t her.- At Plaf.ns Maehtnery. ! 

The ne~t one that we go to a ~ .. rox co~y of 

th~ ort~tnal car~. which {9 the sAme eaui~ment, 

which is ke~t tn Amarillo, te that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Ynu s3!d that th .. first 

one that WillS admit tee was E-163A? 

MR. ODAM: And B, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: And B, just for the record. 

MR. ouAM: YE"s, sfr, the front and 

back of the eard. 

Q Now, for the -- have you ever testifie-d in court 

before? 

A No. 

Q Okay, let me e~l)lai.n for you that the reason I 

~o into the detail and have you read off what ts 

in here is not only for our benefit, but for the 

benefit of what this ~entlemen here is writin~ 

down because there might be someone else that 

looks at this later on s~ therefo~, what we mi~ht 

be able to talk about hert> i.e very involved anc 

rel)etitious, it all al)eaks for i~lf. 

For the l)Url)ose of the fullness of this 

reeord, it is for the benefit of whoever l)icks 
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u~ that book and can read and understand what 

ts on this card. 

You mi10tht think my quf'Ostton was obvious 

on what the card states. You can look on there 

and tell, but for the ~ur~os~ of this record , it 

needs to be very full so I can go tnto a Httle 

btt of detail here with you rs to what the figures 

okey? 

A Okay, I understand. 

Q That is the reaMun for all of that. 

A Okay. 

Q Nnw, we start off and thts ts 16~A and B, that 

ls the card th"t you ke~t and the -oayments are 

indicated to be fifteen hundred dollars. 

Now, then you write in when a fifteen hun-

dred dollar oayment is made, ts that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And then you, when ~ayment ts made, you reduce 

the balance a little bit each time? 

Q And you a1so note i.n herf' whl!lt the date of the 

-oayment is that i.s received, for e~am~le, on th~ 

second line it t~ received 2-21-73, -oayment was 

due 2-16-7~. and you have ~ot a ~ayment of 
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fifteen hundred dollars? 

2 A 
'(es. 

3 Q And ski~ down, for exam~le, here ts one on 

4 2-26·73 of three thousand dollars and I would 

5 ~resume that is for these 

6 A Two ~ayments. 

7 Q Two oayments for March and Aoril of 7~? 

8 A "e. 

9 Q And then we ~o down lfke that throu~h the eards 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

and the eard that is ke~t in Amarillo number 

E-164A and B is ~n here. 

When we get down to 1974, for examole, your 

eard shows 1-24-74 three thousand dollar ~ayment 

and there is a ~osting in Amarillo of fifteen 

hundred dollars on 1·24-74 an~ another on 1-24-74. 

Do they just make two --

17 A They just make two entries, but see, one number 

18 out here on the cash recei~t for it. But I just 

19 do it the sim~le way, 1 just dron down two lines. 

~ Q 1 see, so their card shows that when the 1•24-74 -

21 that credits thl' oayaaent for December 16, 7'1, and 

22 for January 16th, 74. 

23 A Yt's, sir. 

24 Q And that is what you meant here when you «oo 

25 it down, three thousand dollarq, you are credittn~ 
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the December o~yment and the Jsnuaeyoayment, is 

that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q For three thousand dollars? 

Q And ~oin~ back to E·164A a~ain, your next post• 

tng is •• of Aoril the 2nd o~ 74, you have a 

oosting of fifteen hundrerl dollars and another 

fifteen dollars of 4-2- -- I'm sorry, correction, 

this is a 0osttn~ made in Amarillo? 

A This is Amarillo·s. 

Q But your poRtin~ was for A0 r11 the 1st, three 

thousand dollars. Now, I notice on the card that 

you had there i~ a lin~ scratched throu~h that, 

can you describe why that would be a line through 

it? 

A Wf'll, I can. It is ~ning to take a little bit. 

Thi.s was the same ti.me not at tht> same time, 

but right after thts. This note was chan~ed 

from Benavides Imolement and Hardware Comoany 

to 0. P. Carrillo and if you will notice, you 

don't have the other card •• 

Q Well, I have it rf.ght here. 

(Handed to the witness.) 
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A Then this six thousand dollars, this check wasn't 

J!:OOd. 

Q The thrflf.' thousand dollars chf'ck? 

A You wtll ~robably notice this ts bracketed. Wh~n 

we bracket it. the check came back and we re• 

ilelDited it ani! f.n the mf'antime --

Q If I could intf'rru~t you f~r seand, on 4-22· --

~orrection, on ~64A and B --

MR. ODAM: I a~olo~tze, Your Honor, 

for not havtn~ enou~h xerox cooies for us 

all to look at it at the same ti.me. I'm 

tryin~ to ex~lain it to the Court and to 

Mr. Mf. tchell as we ~o alonll st nee I don 1 t 

h~ve the co~ies here for us All to look at 

at the samP time. 

Q On Aoril the 2nd, 1974, the two fifteen hundred 

dollar oayments are not bracketed, are they? 

A No, on my cooy it is not. I iust struck a line 

through mine when the cheek e~me back. 

Q But there is a bracket here? 

A Yes, there is a bracket on the Amarillo eooy. 

Q On Aoril the 22nd? In other words, there is, 

oerhaos, two ~ood ones on A0rtl the 2nd? 

A You see --

Q And then a cheek for, I gues~. three thousand 
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2211 1 
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dollars bounct"d? I t 
2 I A Thts would bt" the datt" wht"n tht" chPck came back 
3 I 

and I enterPd it on thiR cash rect"t~t rf."~ort. 

4 
I ~oste~ it on 3-29 and I took tt away on 4-02. 

Q All ri~ht, so i.n other words you ~ltVt" them credi~t 

for fifteen hundred dollars on Aoril tht> 2nd and 

7 you ~ave them credit again or Aoril the 2nd and 

8 when it bounced you deducted tt? 

9 A Ye!t. 

10 Q Okay. 

11 

12 

13 same number we !'ltarted wi.th here. 

14 Q Well, wht"n the ~IJ}IIII!nt was made on Aorll the 2nd 

15 of 1974 and the check was ~ood, for bookkee~ing 

16 ~ur~oses you reduced the balance that was owed 

17 to sixteen thousand six hundred and et~hty•six 

18 dollars? 

19 

20 Q And when the check was bounced or bounced, you 

21 ran tt back uo a~af.n to ntnetP.en thousand dollars? 

22 A w ... n, we then -- I .1ust struck • 1 ine thrOUP:h 

23 thPre and it shows there i.s ~t~ll nineteen 

24 thousand six hundred and ei~hty•siY dollars. 

25 Q All r!~ht. 

-----t---------------------------------------------------------------- + 
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A NinPteen thousand six hundred and ei~hty•si~ 

2 dollars instead of the sixteen thousand six hun-

3 
dred et~hty-sfy dollars. 

4 
Q Now, on this -- that ts the last entry on E-163A 

5 
and B, that Is the last entry you made ts to 

6 
strike throup.h it? 

7 
A Yes. 

8 Q Now, on E-164A and B, whl~h ts kept in Amarillo, 

9 
"ardon me, they continue after that with a six 

10 
thousand dollarpayment. 

11 
A But I tyoed this card over and we started the 

12 new note on that date and my si~ thousand is 

13 
"P8i.d Uke as a down payment when we .1ust rewrote 

the note. 

15 Q So the last entry on this E-164A for six thousand 

16 dollars is the same as your first entry on 

17 E-165, is that correct? 

18 A YeR. I am sure the fi~ures ~ill corres'!')ond. 

19 What is your balance on that? I am sure because 

20 
the note we just carried it over and chan~ed 

21 
names. 

22 Q Well, they are not the same and I --

23 A Oh, well, the interest was added in a~ain on 

24 this note when we rewrote the note, the interest 

25 fi~ure chan~ed and that is why it would be 

--~-------------------------------+ 
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----------

dt fferE>n t. 

Q And that ts all recited on -- over on the left-

3 hand side, the b~l~nce on the notE'? 

4 A WP started out with this ff.~ure, 

S Q Which would be nineteen thousand six hundred 

6 and et~hty•six dollars? 

2271 
-- t 

7 A And then we added this tnterPst and insurance an~ -

8 Q Who made thP com~utation on the balance on the 

9 note that shows on E-t65? 

10 A Mr. Curtz did and I tyy,u~d thE> c11rd. 

II 0 So you couldn':: ~ay wllt the basts for that, I 

12 mean he com~utPd what the various interest would 

13 be, et c:eter~t? 

14 A Yes. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the only other 

thin~ I would do with this witness is to 

~o throuFh thP checks which Mr. Mitchell 

has. If he is gotn~ to take her on cross-

examination, and do that, I would ~ass the 

witness and let him develoo that and tf 

not, I will do it. 

Are you goin~ to go into the chE-cks, 

Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I will reoresent 

to him that I will, 
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Tf.JE MASTER: 

----------------··· ~227.4t 
If he rloesn't, I would 

let you -- you could reouest to ~o throu~h 

MR. ODAM: All rt~~t, and I would --

let's !':f"e --

MR. MITCHELL: Gtve me the yellow sheet 

that ~oes with this one tf you would, the 

one that ~oes with 160 end the nne that 

~~es with R-50 if you don't mind, an~ I 

believe it is 160. 

MR. ODhM: This is Platn!'! Machtnery. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is this one, rt~ht? 

MR. ODAM: All ri~ht, t~ ts the 

that is the Benavf_des Imnlement and Hardware. 

MR. MITCHELL: That ts the Amarillo 

cony and her cony end the contract. 

MR. ODAM: And JudF,e CeDillo's. 

MR. MITCHELL: And the yellow sheet 

for that one. 

MR. ODAM: Jud~e Carrtllo's ts here 

and this one ts thP one thAt she kent. 

MR. MITCHELL: For thi.l!l one? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ~i~ht. 
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(Dis~usston off th~ r~cord.) 

MR. ODAM: I ~ass th~ witness, Your 

Honor. 

!!-!!!~!!i!!!Q!! 

BY MR, MITCHELL: 

Q Mrs. Drislta, I .... ~oin~ to lll'lk you a fP.w more 

auestionl'l, ~leaAe, ma'am. L~t's !'lee if I can 

~et thil'l all back to you. 

Now. I 11m ~otn~ to hand you back the eon-

tract which I !'lhowed you when I was askin~ you 

some auPations earlier, which is what w~ e11ll 

Exhibit -- Examiner's Exhibit 160. Do you recall 

that? 

19 A YPS. 

• Q And then I'm ,otn~ to hand you your yellow shee t 

21 back and also the one that you ke~t here in this 

22 offieP in your Cor~us Christi office which is 

23 

24 A Yes. 

~ Q And then E-164A ts a eoGy of the one that was 

II 
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in the Amarilla office, t~ that corr~ct? 

A YIPS. 

Q Okay, now, let me ask you this, l n ~um and 

substance, what h~s ha~~ened ts, whiPn that con-

tract was entere~ into by the folks there at 

Plains, someone in the bookkee~in~ de~artment, 

which would be you, extradP~ the information and 

set uo th£ card that you have in this officii" and 

there is one maintained tn the Amerillo office? 

Q Is that correct, 

A Yes. 

Q And I ~reviously as~ed you about thiP information 

that is ~ut on the other card that would be the 

name, the descrt~tt~n of the eftu~oment, the 

terms of the contract and the a~reement, ts that 

corrf'ct? 

Q All right, now, it -- the material thatyou have 

there in your lao, there ts that contract, the 

first contract with Benavides Imolement and 

Hardware, it reflects that t~at contract was 

terminated, doesn't it, at some time in 1970 

A In 1974, I believe. 

Q That it wa 1 termi.natt>d and " nt>w contract was 
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Ret u~ at le8st on your books, on th~ same 

PQU{~ment with 0. P. Carrillo as purcha~er? 

A y f'!'l. 

Q Okay, now, I am ~oin~ to see if I can't follow 

that throu~h and kee~ it seoarated here. 

That new contract, I believe, has been 

introduced into E'vldence as _,.50, alon!!: wt th 

E-165. 

MR. MITCHELL: Let's 1ust wait a 

minute. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, could we take 

just one moment to ~et a blank subpoena 

form? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

(DlRcusston off the rec~rd.) 

MR. ODAM: I am sorry, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: That is all ri~ht. 

Q All ri~ht, now, Mrs. Oriska, the R-40 an~ E-165 

now is a computation then of the paperwork in 

E-160 and E-164A and 164B, am I correct? 

A Yes. 

Q On the .. e equipment? 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

711 ANTELOPE • GUARANiY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. 1EXAS 7840, 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

IS 

2278 

A Yes. 

Q Okay, and ts it ~enerally corr~ct that th• 

o~enin~ fi~ure on E-165 ts th~ last or clGsin~ 

ft~ure on E-164A and B, but for, I believe, a 

A Well, I --

Q But that fs the way it shoult have been, is 

that correct? 

Q And it ·~~Pars that when Ju~~e Carrillo took 

over the eontracL or however he ended u~ buyin~ 

it, there was a ~ayment of si~ thousand dGllars 

made at that time? 

Q By J~e Carrillo? 

A Yes. 

Q And that is shown on E-165, isn't it? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now t~en, as I assume, t~at is what 

ha~~ens as Jud~e Carrillo has made the ~eyments, 

under the contract w~ie~ is R-50, which you are 

holdin~ in your hand, those ~~yments are ~{eked 

uu and ~ut in on E-165 as well as the ori~inal 

which is in the Amarillo office? 

A Yt>S. 
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(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, let me hand you some 

checks from Judge Carrillo to what appears to be 

Plains Machinery and they are now R-60-1, 3, 4 

and 7 and I will ask you to examine them and see 

if they are all payable to Plains? 

THE MASTER: Go ahead and ask the 

question. I have got ~o get something 

clarified after ycu have asked the question. 

MR. MITCHELL: Those do not include 

R-60-2, 5 and 6, Judge, that I am asking 

the witne~~ about. I know that is what the 

Court is asking me about, so, for the 

record --

THE MASTER: There are some exhibits --

some of the sub exhibits to R-60 which have 

not yet been presented to her. 

MR. MITCHELL: And I think, Judge, for 

the record, that it's R-60-5 and 6 that 

have not. 

THE MASTER: R-60-2, 5 and 6? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, and I handed to 

you R-60-1, R-60-3, R-60-4 and R-60-7, have 

I not? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) And those are all checks 
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payable to Plains Equipment and deposited, if 

you will turn them over, 'I think. 

I already have. 

They are all for deposit only into you-all's 

account, correct? 

Yes. 

And for the purpose, I have to ask the technical 

questions. Is that the copy for your deposit 

paid to the order of Corpus Christi State National 

Bank for deposit only, Plains Machinery Company, · 

Account No. 03L~32-6, correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Have you recognized that as being you-all's 

stamp? 

Sure. 

Do you not? 

Yes. 

Now, will you do me a favor? I want to first 

take R-60-7, which is a payment made in October 

you notice in the amount of two thousand four 

forty-nine I withdraw that whole question. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am going to offer 

them, first, Judge Meyers. I offer R-60-1, 

R-60-3, R-60-4 and R-60-- 7. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, may I have a 
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moment to examine these? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. ODAM: Off the record. 

(Whereupon, an off-the-record 

discussion was had.) 

MR. ODAM: MrJ. Oriska, R-60-3 is a 

check dated Jun~ the 19th, 1975 in the 

amount of one thousand two dollars and fifty-

six cents. It does not state on here what 

the check is for unlike R-60-1, where it 

does state thereon made payment for two 

Caterpillars. R-60-1 is also dated 6-19-75. 

And my question to you is: Is R-60-3, which 

is the same date as R-60-1, is it your 

testimony that that would appear to be a 

check of one thousand two dollars and fifty-

six cents in payment for the two Caterpillars 

on the same date? 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, John. She 

has got the ledger sheet in front of her. 

Perhaps if she had the two items with her, 

she could interrelate. I was going to ask 

those questions, Judge, and have her 
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interrelate them. You can do it if you want 

to. 

THE WITNESS: Now, which, the 60-3, is 

this the one you're asking about? 

MR. ODAM: 60-3, is that the payment 

on the Caterpillars? 

THE WITNESS: I h~ve a question I want 

to ask. 

THE MASTER: Better ask it on the rec~rd. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I ask the witness ~ 

question? There appears there was a credit 

made on that date, but there was a mis-

statement of the exact amount, isn't it? 

That is on the 20th of June and there was a 

posting of an amount of about that same 

amount, Mrs. Driska. I am not being critical 

of your bookkeeping system. It appears that 

check was credited on the Caterpillar 

purchase contract. 

THE WITNESS: Well, Mr. Carrillo has an 

open account with us and he has another note 

besides this, so, until I could -- I should 

have brought my book. This to me I just 

can't believe that I would make a mistake 

like that. 
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THE WITNESS: Well, this check I am 

looking at is -- here is one for a thousand 

and 

MR. ODAM: When you say here 

THE MASTER: Just a minute. Mr. Odam, 

you may proceed on voir dire, if you wish, 

but we must prese~~e the integrity of the 

record without too much bouncing back and 

forth. 

MR. MLTCHELL: Pardon me, Your Honor. 

I had intended to go through that very line. 

I don't have any preference whether Mr. Odam 

wants to do it. I had intended to carry 

through on these items that are not on there 

for the purpose of clarifying the record. 

Items on October, Judge, that were not even 

posted --

MR. ODAM: Well, the reason that I 

would -- I was trying to clarify it for my 

own purposes whether or not to pose an 

objection if the checks are being offered 

like the other checks we have had in the 

past, and I went into voir dire --

THE MASTER: You may proceed. Counsel 
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says it doesn't matter. lt 1 s proper 

2 inquiry on voir dire. 
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Again, my question to you, Mrs. Driska, il --

R-60-3 the check for one thousand and two dollars 

and fifty-six cents. 

Okay. 

Did that check go to pay for two Caterpillars? 

It's not on this card. 

THE MASTER: I will ask the next 

question. Could it have gone on some other 

account of Judge Carrillo's? 

THE WITNESS: That is what I had tried 

to tell you all. He has an open account wit 

us and he has another note with us. 

(By Mr. Odam) And what is tne other note for; 

do you know what it's for? 
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A It's for an air compressor. 

Q All right. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the only 

objection I would level at R-60-3 is that 

of relevancy if it's being offered to prove 

that this check was made in payment and e 

continuing sequence of payments on the two 

Caterpillars because from her testimony, it 

was not made for that purpose. I don't deny 

that it was made for some other purpose and 

that Plains Machinery received it. I do not 

think it's relevant to show a continuing 

chain on this particular one and we would 

object to its introduction on the grounds of 

relevancy. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I, Your Honor, have 

the witness in connection with another item 

of the same date and perhaps we'll clarify 

the record. 

THE MASTERs Well, the objection at 

this time is good. This witness cannot 

identify this check aa one that went to pay 

off the Caterpillars. 

MR. MITCHELL: I UTderatood, and her 

answer being that he had another account on 
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compressors and I would like to offer 

another exhibit on the compressor payment 

made that very same date that will hopefully 

clarify the record. 

THE MASTER: She said compressor plus 

open account. I take it by that, Mrs. Oriska, 

you say it could be a payment on the open 

account or a payment on the compressor, 

either one? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, because we have done 

shop jobs and things and this could be 

something else. I should have brought my 

books. 

THE MASTER: All right, Mr. Mitchell. 
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BY MR. KITCHELL: 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Mrs. Drieka, let me hand you another exhibit that 

has been aarked as R-60-2, ~hich is a check of the 

same date. That is 6-19-75, in the amount of 

three forty-two sixty-eight from Judge Carrillo 

to Plains Machinery, and I believe -- excuse me, 

ma'am. 

It's also endorsed and deposited in Plains' 

account; am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

It's the same date as R-60-3, is it not? 

Yes, sir. 

And it's labeled, however, Kay-June compressor. 

That is two payments on the compressor. 

Now, excuse me. Let me take E-165. The question 

has been asked about this entry, 6-20-75, the 

day after R-60-3, which is the 19th of June, and 

R-60-1, which is the 19th of June and I will ask 

you the same question asked you by counsel, 

whether the payment made of a thousand twenty-two 

ninety-one on 6-20-75 was a payment represented 
----~---------------------------------------------r-
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somehow in the combination of the two checks 

R-60-1 and R-60-2 on those two tractors, and you 

can take a look at those two documents to answe1~ 

that question. 

A Well, the check for a thousand twenty-two ninety-

one is R-60-1 and 1 deposited it on June the 20~h 

of '75. That is the amount I have on my card. 

Q The account insofar as you know to date is current, 

Judge Carrillo's account? 

A Which account, his open account or note? 

Q No, the purchase of the Caterpillars. 

A He owes one note. 

Q And that would be for the month of December? 

A Well, it's really due on October the 2nd for one 

thousand two hundred and seventy-four dollars and 

eighty-one cents. 

Q All right. Now, let me show you another check. 

MR. MITCHELL: John, do you have that 

one? 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell) Now, I show you the R-60-7 and 

see if you can recognize that as being a check for 

two thousand five hundred and forty-nine dollars 

and sixty-two cents payable to Plains Machinery 

from Judge Carrillo on two 1:ractors, and, excuse 

me, ma'am, and endors~d, deposited, rather, and 
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put in you-all's account? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, look, if you would, for R-165 and tell the 

Judge whether or not, and that is R-60-7 for 

two thousand five forty-nine sixty-two is credited 

or shown on R-165? 

It's not posted because thi" was taken two or 

three months ago. 

All right. Now, if it were posted, how would 

R-60-7 show as to the currency of 165? That is 

on the journal. Go right on through what, 

December 1st? 

It would go -- well, no, it would go through 

August the 2nd. These are my dates I go by over 

here. This is the due date of the note. 

All right. 

And it would bring it down two more linea and 

that would be August the 2nd of '75. 

So, you have no reason to believe R-60-7 vas not 

received and properly credited; am I correct? 

Oh, I know we received it. 

All right. Just not posted on 165, correct? 

It just hadn't been posted to this as this 

picture vas taken some time ago. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, we offer R-60-7. 
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MR. ODAM: I have no objection to 

R-60-7. 

THE MASTER: It's admitted. 

(Whereupon, said document having been 

previously marked for identification as 

Respondents' Exhibit 00-7 was admitted.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Let me ask you this: As a 

matter of fact, now, that would bring the account 

current down through August; am I correct, if I 

followed you? 

That's right. 

Now, I will show you R-60-4 and if that appears 

to be a check to Plains Machinery, 12-74? 

That is posted on the card. 

That somehow got posted on the card, although it's 

dated August 8, 1975; that has been deposited in 

your account, am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And you recognize that? 

Yes. 

And, so, credit had been given Judge Carrillo on 

you-all's card, which is E-165, for that 

payment? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we offer 

R-60-4, also. 

MR. ODAM: No objection. 

THE MASTER: R-60-4 is admitted. 

(Whereupon, saic" document having been 

previously marked for identification as 

Respondents' Exhibit R-60-4 was admitted.) 

(By Mr. Mitch ... ll) Now, I am going to ask you 

one that we will have to go by memory on. 

I haven't got a very good memory. 

Do you recall whether you received still another 

check from Judge Carrillo? 

Yes, we received it just within the last, I 

would say, week or two. 

And that check would be dated in November, I 

suppose? 

Uh-huh. 

And it's the payment on the Caterpillar account, 

correct? 

Yes. 

That leaves then, if my calculation is correct, 

only about twelve hundred dollars due on Judge 
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Carrillo's purchase contract for the two 

Caterpillars? 

Yes, one payment exactly. 

Right. As of today as we sit here on the 2nd day 

of December, 1975. 

Yes. 

Now, there is a time lag, I suppose then, and 

that is really what I was driving at from the time 

those checks are received and the time that they 

do post and then, of course, you indicated that 

E-165 was taken some time ago and naturally would 

not include payments made within the last week 

or two; am I correct? 

That's correct. 

I will ask you -- I don't know whether I asked 

you this. I have to ask you certain technical 

questions about R-60-1 and R-60-3. You recognize 

those as being checks by Judge Carrillo? 

THE MASTER: Let's make it R-60-1 and 

R-60-3. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's right, Judge. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) R-60-1 and R-60-3; dash 1 

being endorsed by you for deposit only in the 

Plains Machinery account; an I correct? 

Yes. 
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And also R-60-3 being endorsed and put into the 

bank by Plains Machinery Company, am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

I am going to ask you to hold those two, R-60-1 

and 3 and hand you 165 and see if you can tell 

the Court whether or not they have credited 

correctly to Judge Carrillc's Caterpillar 

account? 

Well, R-60-1 has been posted on the card, but 

R-60-3 has not been posted on the card, but I 

don't know tha~ that is a note payment. 

That is the one that we -- there is a discrepancy 

of about twenty dollars, isn't there? The check 

is in the amount of a thousand and two dollars 

fifty-six cents, but the --

This one is. This one right here, it's a thousand 

twenty-two ninety-one is this check. 

By that you mean R-60-1, correct? 

Yes. 

But we don't know what R-60-3 is, but we do know 

it was paid to the Plains Machinery and 

deposited in the Plains'account? 

Yes, that has been paid to us. 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer R-60-1, 

Judge Meyers. 
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MR. ODAM: 1 have no objection to 60-l. 

THE MASTER: Admitted. 

(Whereupon, said document having been 

previously marked for identification as 

Respondents' Exhibit 60-1 was admitted.) 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell) Now, R-60-2, R-60-5, R-60-6 

appear to be checks from Judge Carrillo to Plains 

Machinery and are all endorsed for deposit only 

to the account of Plains Machinery, do they not? 

A That's correct. 

Q Is that correct? 

A (Witness nods head yea.) 

Q Now, these are noted May and June compressor 

payments. You don't have any of the compressor 

book payments to show whether that account is 

curront or not, do you? 

A No, I didn't bring anything like that. 

Q All right. But those --

A But - believe the account is current. 

Q Thoen checks, that is 60-2, 5 and 6 along with 

60-3 are payments made by Judge Carrillo to the 

Plains Machinery people and deposited in the 

Plains' account; am I correct? 
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A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

And there is no doubt about that in your mind as 

you look at the documents? 

(Witness shakes head no.) 

But you can't tell us without the books, as I 

understand it, Mrs. Driska, for what purposes 

those payments were made; ttat is on what accotmts 

othet. than the notatior.s to the extent that some 

of them were paid on the compressors? 

These three, I am sure, are compressors. It's 

two payments on one, on the R-60-2 and one 

payment on R-60-5 and two payments on R-60-6, 

but this is the only check I can't identify, which 

is R-60-3. 
/ 

His business, I suppose, has been satisfactory 

as far as Plains Machinery is concerned? He has 

made all of his payments, whether it's the 

Caterpillar account, whether it's the compressor 

account or whether it's an open account? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we offer 

R-60-2, R-60-3, dash 5 and dash 7. 

MR. ODAM: Judge, we would object to 

the introduction of ite~s just stated on 

the grounds of relevancy for the following 
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reason: We think that it's not relevant 

to the matter which is in question; that 

is payments on the Caterpillar. This 

witness's testimony obviously even by looking 

at the checks themselves is they are not the 

Caterpillar and put in the record simply to 

show that Judge Carrilio has made payments 

on the air compre·;~or and .,n notes is not an 

issue in dispute and would simply clutter the 

record and is unnecessary and I would object 

and ask that they not be admitted and I am 

referring to R-60-6, dash 5, dash 3 and 

dash 2. 

THE MASTER: What is the relevancy? 

Actually, 3 has not been identified. 

Mrs. Oriska very candidly said she does not 

know what it's meant for and cannot tell us 

because of the incompleteness of the records. 

2, 5 and 6 are payments on a compressor, 

but what does that have to do with this case~ 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, the objectio~ 

appears to be good on its face, however, and 

I toyed with not offering them; however, 

the status of the card, 165, shows the 

account in arrePr.s and out of abundance of 
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precaution, I wanted to establish that not 

only that account is current and only one 

payment due on it, but if there is any hold-

over or doubt or residual doubt about the 

man's ability to perform or his genuineness 

of 

THE MASTER: I dr. a' t believe we are 

trying that issue. I sustain the objection. 

MR. MITCHELL: I offer them, Judge, 

then, for the purpose of the form of the 

bill. 

THE MASTER: Of course, they automatically 

become your bill. 

MR. MITCHELL: And may I have permission 

of the Court to withdraw these originals, 

Your Honor, subject to any examination made 

in the record for the purpose and 

substituting copies. 

THE MASTERs Certainly, 

MR. ODAM: No objections. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have one minute, 

Judge? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: I have no further 

questions, Judge Meyers, for tbis witness. 
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BY MR. ODAM: 

Q 

A 

Q 

Mrs. Oriska, I should point out one item to you 

and that is that these proceedings are 

confidential and therefore, the testimony that 

you give here should not be discussed with 

anyone outside this room. If you were to go 

outside and someone with the news media said, 

for example, w1 • .1t did you say; no one hae said 

that to you before, but you should say, I am 

sorry. I under the Texas Constitution requires 

me not to say anything. You should not say a 

thing to anyone. That goes not only with the 

news media, but anyone else that asks you 

anything because that same rule applies not only 

to you or to anyone else; you're not privied, are 

you, to anyone else has testified, is that 

correct? You don't know who has testified and 

what they have said, is that right? 

I don't know. That's correct. 

All right. Now, with that background, I would 

like to pose this to you: ~ome questions were 

posed to a witness earlier that certain payments 
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on a Caterpillar were in default and we are 

talking about the accounts there in the name of 

Benavides Implement and Hardware; for example, 

a question was, and he had six months in default; 

that is he paid six thousand dollars at that time. 

It was in default for six months and for the 

benefit of the record, 1 am referring to Page 2100 

of the testimony of December 1, 1975. 

MR. MITCHELL: And for the record, of 

which copy 1 don't have. 

THE ~STER: For the record, you now 

have it? 

MR. MITCHELL: I thank you, It's by 

the courtesy of the Court. 

You may continue, counsel. I have got 

it. 

(By Mr. Odam) It's on that page, Mrs. Driska, 

and it says, as a matter of fact, the contract 

with Plains was already in default in February, 

1974. It was in default in February of 1974. 

Again, for the benefit of the record and for you, 

Mrs. Driska, the question was at Page 2102. It 

went into default and stayed in default for the 

full year of 1974, didn't it.? 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, wait a minute, 
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Your Honor. 

THE WITNESS: N0. 

KR. MITCHELL: We are going to object. 

Of couree, that question, it's highly 

iaproper. Counsel is taking a question 

propounded, I euppose by me some days in the 

past of another vitn~ s and aeking this 

witness who has a~qolutely no knowledge 

beyond just extracting information from the 

contract for internal bookkeeping purposes 

which I tl.ink the record reflects she has 

done accurately and correctly. That would 

be in speculation and argumentative. 

THE MASTER: He can quote her that 

testimony and then aek if her records verify 

or do not verify that conclusion. That is 

what I take it the way you are going. 

HR. ODAK: Yes, sir. 

HR. MITCHELL: I have no objection to 

that type of question, if the record reflects' 

that type of 

THE MASTER: Well, that is what I 

thought he vas going to do, Mr. Mitchell. 

It may have been a little unclear. 

OIATIIUI &: "'~K lA I L '-
c.f)v•,. •£~"'PTt;.~=:! 
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Q All rt~ht, at ~8~~ 2101, th~ t~sttmony of this 

witness Rays, "I don't kno•••, I mean wh~n they 

becam~ due, I hav~ got to ~~e the sheet where 

they were cred•terl every tfme they were ~ald." 

And th~n 19t 2104, the witnes~ said, "I 

don't know wh& t date they werf' d~ f8u 1 ted!' 

You can tt>ll, Mrs. DrlRl< .1, fr!Jm thf' ques-

tlons th&t were ~osed to that witness yesterday 

and Mr. Mitchell':'! comutents 1ust then, lt was 

a question of when the contract with Benavides 

Implement anrl Ha~Jware went into default, &nd t 

take it by your s~ontaneouR exclamat~on th~re 

that they were not in default for a cert&ln period 

of time. 

That brings me up to ask you thPse questions 

back on the card, to clarify for the record, 

based on the c&rds when Benavfdes Irnolement and 

H&rdware went into default, if they dfd go tnto 

default on the oayments that they had. 

I would refer, for exam~le, in the record, 

the f!u•stion that was po~ed to the witness on 

1974, "Am I correct, and he had a s{x month 

default, that is he paid slx thouRand dollars 

at that timt-?" 

Now, I refer back to tht> card whieh you 
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2 my nuPstion i.R, can you tE-11 from that csrd 

3 which fs E-l61A ~nd B when, if at all, BP-navid~s 

4 lmol~mE-nt and H11rdwsrt> "went into ~t>f~tult" on 

5 thetr payments? 

6 A WPll, eYnlain to me on dpfault bPcRUSP a while 

7 a~o you saf.d tht>y wtore i.n dE-fAult for the wholf' 

8 year of 74, that 1 R ~hy I ~8id no. 

9 Q Well, that wa ~ thP Quest~on that ~a~ oosed, 

10 A No~. ilo you mean by default ju~t before wP werP 

II ~oln~ to reooss~.s tht> machtnes or what is your 

12 deftnttton of default beforP I answer. 

13 Q Allri.~ht, no'" my f'!uestton to you i.s, can you 

14 e~olatn for us, bAsed unon your cards, when, the 

15 way you would charscteri.zP dtofault and when did 

16 Benavldps ImnlPment and HardwAre default on thPfr 

17 payment, if thPy did, accordtn~ to your records, 

18 Would i.t be when that onP chPck bounced, 

19 that they dPfBulted, tf you would characterize 

20 that to be a default? 

~ A Well, I wouldn't really consider that a default 

22 myself, just the cheek wa~n't ~ood. I'm sure 

23 they 0robably had some money out somewhere, but 

24 they didn't ~et lt in. 

~ Q And that was thP cheek, that is shown on E-164 A an 
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that you receiv~d on Aorll th~ 2nd, 1974, for 

2 three thousand dollars and you credited the 

3 account, and th~n on Aortl the ?.2nd, 1974 you 

4 debited de account to ~ive thPm back the balance. 

5 A Added it back on. 

6 Q So if there wa~ Any "default", if there was any 

7 "dt>fsult", that would be rip.:ht at that date, if 

8 that was a default, 

9 A If that wa~ 8 default, yes, sir. 

10 0 Now, are you familiar with thP do you know 

II of your own oel. . ..,nal knowled,ze if Jud~e 0. P. 

·12 Cauillo -- well, I asked you, do you identify 

13 Jud~e 0. P. Carrillo as betn~ oresent in the 

14 courtroom today? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q You have seen him beforp? 

17 A Yes. 

U Q At the Plains MachinPry, I take 1t? 

19 A Ytos. 

~ Q Did you ~ersonally have any dealin~s with 

21 Jud~Ze Carrillo about the siy thousand dollar 

nayment which i.s ldenti.fte(l nn his 

a A It ts on one of them, on his note. 

25 that sf~ thousand dollar oayment? 
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----- --- -·-------------------=:...::....:::-=----l-

A W~ll, really, th~t wa~ at th~ time we rewrote 

the note, we ·~~liPd, ynu know, the six thousand 

dollars I ~ueq~ it would be lik~. ynu know, to 

brin~ the account current ~r more like a down 

~ayment, you know, at the time that we rewrote 

the note on May the 2nd of 74. 

Q Now, ~hat dtd the six thou~r,d dollar ~ayment 

that he ~aid on May the 6th, 1974, what did that 

six thousand dollar~ ~o for? 

A Well, do you mean like for so many ~ayments? 

Q YP~, ma'am, in uther words like --

A It would be four ~ayments. 

Q All ri~ht, four ~ayments on 

A But you see, tt wa s fifteen hundred dollars, 

back when it wal'! BPnav:tdes Imnlement and Hard· 

ware. 

Q Ye~, ma'am, and E-165, which is the card on 

his account, ri~ht? 

Q And we start off with a new balaneP of twenty• 

two thousand nine hundred and forty-six dollars 

Q Fifty-eight cents, I am sorYy. 
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Q And thPn he madP 8 si~ thousand dollar ~aymnt 

2 nn May the 6t~ of 1974? 

3 A YPs. 

4 Q And then that reduced it by si~ thousand from 

s twenty-two thousand doll8rs th8t leaves a 

6 balance of siYtPPn thousand nine hundred and 

7 forty-siY dollarfl and fifty-'fll:ht cents, is that 

8 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q So the si~ thousand dollar ~ayment --

11 A Really, to me tn.,t would be like four ~ayments. 

12 Q For whtrh month? 

13 A That would be from May, June, July and Au~ust 

14 of 74. 

15 Q All right, so -- in May, in May th.e 6th of 74, 

16 he was ~ayin~ for May, June, July and August? 

17 A Ye~~;, 

18 Q Okay, so it wouldn't be a sf~ thousand dollar 

19 oayment because there wasn't any si~ thousand 

20 dollars in default? 

U A No, I t~lnk he 1ust like oatd that in advance, 

to me, that's what that means. 

~ Q All right. 

24 A Now default to me means 1 ike •Jh.en somebody 

refuses to ~ay. That fs what that word means to 
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mP. 

Q All r~~ht. 

MR. ODAM: P111s~ thP witness. 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Mr~. Driska, do you ell rpcall -- I say you ell, 

do you know of your own ~ersonal knowledge that 

Plains, tn fact, wrote a lettf'r to Benavides 

Imolement and H~rdw111re sometime in the early 

~art of 1974 that they were ~otng to re~ossess 

the eGui~ment unless the note was brou~ht current? 

Do you remember th111t? 

A No, I sure don't. 

Q Would you mfnd checkin~ the filPs, checktn~ it 

at -- it would be in thP ftr~t oert of 1974. 

A I don't remembPr ty,i.n,z Auch 111 lf'tter. 

Q All rt~ht, but you will check for mf'? 

A I will check. 

Q And I would ask you if you would notify me end 

I 111m Arthur Mitchell, which in line with the 

auestions ~ut to you hv thf' other ~ttorney, you 
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hav~ n~ver ~een me befor~ you took the stand 

today. am I correct? I have never talked to 

you about thf' case? 

A No. 

Q Would you mind checkin~ thf' ftles to be -- to 

see if there were Auch a letter and, tf so. would 

you mtnd -- well, t f hare i.r.n' t I w8nt to know and 

if there is, I would li~~ to have a co~y of it. 

TqE MASTER: I would su~~est, Mr. 

Mitchell, you are here {n town, are you not? 

THE Wl!NESS: Ye~. 

THE MASTER: And you can just call --

Mr. Mitchell. you 1ust call her around four 

this afternoon when she has had a chance 

to check it and ask her. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht. fine, Jud~e 

THE MASTER: And you can ~o by. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht. 

Q I'll ask you also, Mrs. Driska, if there were 

not •• If there was not a letter -- doesn't 

Plains send out a notice when the nayments are 

dut>? 

A Yes, sir, we ~end out note notices once a month. 

Q And then when they n~~ in default nr oast due, 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840, 

I 
I 
I 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2~09 

due or fn default? 

A Mr. Kurtz will usuRlly wrtte " litt1~ note and 

!lay could you ~et this i.n by thE' -- you know, 

whatever day of the week it is, say, in th~ 

next few days. 

Q All ri~ht, now do you all kP~P a co~y. would you 

have any way of havin~ r co~y of that, say, wtth 

a note written on it chat tt was in default or 

'Past dut"? 

A Now. I don't betLeve I woul~ have th~t. 

Q All ri~ht. you would check --

A Normally. each month when I ty~e u~ the new 

ones. I just throw away the old onPs becaust' 

Q All ri.~ht. 

A -- you 1ust can 1 tkPe~ ~verythin~. 

It could h~vP ~nn~ nut to BenAvi~P~ 

a copy, a notice of that ty~~. it rou1~ hav~, ic 

that corrt'ct? 

A W~ might have. 

Q YP~, I say one could have gonE' out? 

A One c~uld have, but we-- I ~uct normally don't 

keep thosP -- I ;ust --

Q All ri_ght. 
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A I doubt if I hav~ on•. 

Q Now, at th~ timP that thf~ -- that this n~w 

w~s R-50, Mrs. Drtska, in summary thPrP was a 

nPw owner shown on you all's records, am I correct, 

A Y""· 

Q Th• 11ame ef!utl)mt"nt but a nPW ownPr'r 

A Ye"· 

Q Is that correct? 

A Y•s. 

Q New monthly ~aymt"nts? 

A Yes, the amount chan~ed. 

Q Rh;ht. They wPre orevtously wtth Benavides 

Imolem•nt and Hardwart" ftftPen thousand dollars 

a month, am I correct? 

A YPS. 

Q And thPn the oayments were c~an~ed to twelve 

hundred --

A Twelve seventy-four et~hty-one or somethtn~ ltk~ 

that. 

Q A month'r 

Q When Jud~e Cftrrfllo bou~ht th~ PfiUi"ment, am I 

correct? 
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A YPS, 

Q And there wss s nPw b&lance, am I correct, and 

a different date of ~ayment ~rovidP~ for in thP 

s~reement, I believe. 

A I believe the ~ste chan~ed, yes. 

Q All ri~ht, and ~n you know whether or not st the 

tf.me that the a~reement wa!'l tnade with Jud~e 

Carrillo thst the old cnntract wit~ Benavides 

Im~lement and HBrdwsre reflected here on vour 

record~ wa~, fn fact, ~ast due for several months, 

do you know thatt 

Q c~n you tell, fs there anythtn~ you can tell on 

that and let mP ~ive it bsck to you, I will 

1u~t hand all of the documents back and you are 

free to look at them. 

A All I need is these two cards. 

A 

A 

(Handed to the witness.) 

Okay, on this -- I ~uess thlt h A~ril 1. 

MR. ODAM: Whtch item are we referrin~ 

to? 

MR. MITCHELL: ShP is lookin~ at E-16"\A, 

This h E-16::\-A, This i.s the check on Auril 1st. 

1974, for three thousand dollar~ that didn't 
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cleAr thP b~tnk. 

2 
Q Atl rtght. 

3 
A And then M&y -- at that t~me, see, that would 

4 
have been -- that would havP been one month 

5 
behind but with the check not good, that made 

6 ft three months behind. 

7 Q At fifteen hundred dollArs f'Jch? 

8 A At fifteen hundred dollars, that would have 

9 
ma~e February 16th, March 16th and A~ril 16th of 

10 74 all due becausP the check didn't clear the 

II bank. They woulo have at that time been three 

12 months or three ~ayments behind. 

13 Q Now, Jud~e Carrillo's contract commenced May 2nd, 

14 1974, at one thousand two hundred seventy-four 

15 dollArs and ei~hty-one cents, am I corr«t? 

16 A Yes, it was ri,.ht after this thst we rewrote the 

17 note and that is the one on Msy --

18 Q Excuse me, I didn't mean to interrupt you. 

19 A On May 2nd of 74. 

20 Q Do you know whether or not it was a reQuirement 

21 that hE' bring i. n effect whitt turnf.>d out to be 

22 four oayments on that contract, before Plains 

23 would sell the same equipment, under this a~ree-

24 ment that has been introduced into evidence as 

R-50, do you know if ~~ had to hrin~ that contract ! 
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currE"nt? 

A Nn, I don't t~ink that was any oart of the agrPP· 

mE'nt because, see, over here WE' ~avP, tf it 

would have bPE'n ~ dnwn oaymPnt, wP would have 

tyoed that in h~re and, see, 1t was dnwn oayment 

ls zero. 

Q WPll, I'm sug~esttn~ it wa~ not a down oayment 

but it was a rPnuirement that hP brtn~ that old 

contract current throu~h Aor~l of 1974. 

A WPll, you see 

Q Let mE' see if I can help you. E-16,-A shows you 

without that thrf'e thousand dollar "ayment ~ade 

on January, 1974, throuRh January of 74, is that 

correct? 

A YPs. 

Q That wnuld mean thPre was no payment ~de accord-

in,. to that EYhibit for FPbruary, March or April 

nr May, am I corrE"ct? 

Q And on May thE' 4th Jud,P Carrfllo paid six thou-

sand dollars, am I correct? 

A Yt>s. 

Q So that would havP brou~ht that old contract, 

re~ardless of who madE' ~t or anyth~n~ --

A Brou~ht it up to date. 
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Q That would have brought the old contract u~ to 

2 date, am I correct? 

3 A Ye"· 

4 

5 ~ollars, am I correct? 

6 A That's rlJ~tht. 

1 Q And then he uicked u~ under ~his new a~reement 

8 « • different rate, at s different ~eriod of 

9 time and so forth, am I correct? 

10 A That' 111 correct. 

11 Q And that i!! l){ck.~d u~ tn your otller ledge sheet? 

12 A Uh-huh, where I stsrted over, thE' new note. 

13 Q E-165? 

14 A Yt!>s. 

15 Q And that is current and he ~afd i.t u~, down 

16 to one ~ayment? 

17 A 'fherP is one l)syment due on thi!ll notE'. 

18 Q Okay. 

19 MR. MITCHELL: No further Questions 

of this witnees. 

21 

22 

24 

---'--~11-----------------------------·--r 
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BY MR. ODAM: 
2 

3 Q ~-Tell, you mP.nttone~ a couple of thing~-; that --

4 you just, I believe, testified to the fact that 

5 you were lookine at the items and s~id that they 

6 were three months behind in o8yment, you said 

7 February, March and April? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Now, there was a check recetved on -- as evidenced 

10 by E·164A received April the 2nd, 1974, for 

11 aprently three .:housand dollars. 

~ A But that was a check that --

13 Q Yes, ma'am, that is for the February and Marh 

14 payments? 

Ul Q And then it was insufficient fum!R ~tnd you found 

17 that on April the 22nd? 

·~ A Rtght. 

Jt Q So the payment for Februaxy and March 1m not been 

made because that check bounced? 

\}, A That 1 s corrPct. 

• Q And that brou~ht the balance back up to nineteen 

thousand si~ hundre~ ei~hty-six dollars? 

~ A Yes. 

2f•, Q Now, do you --
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A You se~ this note starte~ out of that. 

Q All ri~ht, ~o that brou~ht it back u~ to nine• 

teen thousand st~ hundre~ ei~hty•six dollars 

and that i~ the last f{~ure or n•~t to the last 

ft~ure on E-164A? 

Q And that, as you just ~otnted out on E-165, ts 

the ~tartin'- ff.~~:ure nineteen thousand stx hundrf'd 

ei~hty•s17 dollars, which is used to comoute thf' 

new note? 

A The new note? 

Q Yf'l!!. 

A That's right. 

Q And the new note was to start off then at twenty-

t~o thousand nine hundred forty-six dollars end 

fffty•etght cents? 

A Ye!'l, sf.r. 

Q And then the oayment was made on May the 6th of 

74 of ai.x thousand dollars on that new note of 

twenty-two thousand ntne hundred and forty-six 

dollars? 

A That's right. 

Q So now it is your ~tmony th~t the six thouaan~ 

~otl•r• ~aid on May the 6th of- 1974 was that six 

thouslnd dollara e while A~o when I aaked you, 
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I understood that ft wee ~afd six thousand 

2 dollars which, ln effE-ct, would be thE' t)ayments 

3 for May, June, and July, and I beli.eve you saf.d 

4 four months and now you are sayin~ the six 

5 thousand dollars for the ~rev~ous months ~aymentr.? 

6 A W~ll~ this IR kind of hard for nrobably me to 

7 exolatn to you. 

8 You seE', whf'n we rE-wrote this note on 

9 May the 2nd, tt f.s E·165, for this amount of 

10 money, the nineteen thousand six hundred and 

11 ef.~hty•six dollars, tht is what the nnte~arte~ 

12 out with. WPll, that •• the tnterPst was already 

13 in thh fi~ure. 

14 Q Yes, ma'am. 

15 A When we rewrote the note again we added in more 

16 interest because It is ~oin~ to be carried a 

17 lon~er ~eriod of time and we cancelled that 

18 other insurance ~otley and rewrote the insurance. 

19 You see, herP is two intE-rest ft~ure~, that 

20 is this interest for it bein~ three months late 

21 and then thts is the IntE-rest for -- well, now 

22 I had better not say that. 

23 

24 to carry thf8 note and thE"n t'.ts nther interest 

2S is because the note w~A late but, of course, w~ 
-----tt-------------------------
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~~ted these d&tes on May the 2nd, 

2 Q Oklty. 

3 A Thse fi~ure~. I c~n Aee don't mate~. I ~ueBA 

4 that's what you are asking for. 

5 Q Yes, 

6 A The six thousand ~ollars is four ~ayments at 

7 fifteen hundred dollars. It iA not this one 

8 thousand two hundred and seventy-four dollars 

9 and et~hty-one cents, is wh8t the new note was, 

10 Q All ri~ht. 

11 A But then on down here, he cau~ht th~s UD later 

12 on and that is why these ft~ures are different, 

13 you know. 

14 Q Well, let me see if I can summari~e and let you 

15 ~o with these ouestions. 

16 Would i.t bP fair to summartre your testi-

17 mony then that the Plains Machinery ~ot a check 

18 for three thousand dollar~ on Aortl the 2nd? 

19 A YeA, 

20 Q Of 1974? 

21 A Yes, 

22 Q You've credf.ted thl' account with that and the 

23 next thin~ that ha~~ened was the check came b•ck 

24 and it bounced for three thousand dollars? 

~ A That's ri~ht. 
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Q And that l.,ft " bRl8nct> nfntneteen thous11nd 

A Y.-s. 

Q An~ that w11s l~tte Aoril? 

A Yes. 

Q And then Judge 0. P. Carrillo c~tme in a couple 

of wtoeks thereafter on May t1,e 6th, nicked un the 

note and it was changed over and recomouted and 

he started off on it on MRy the 6th? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay, now, you identified Judgp C~trrtllo as bt>inr 

in the courtroom today. When. if you recall, wa~ 

the first time that you had ever Reen Judge 

Carrillo? Would it be on May tht> 6th when he 

clime in to recomoute it? 

·A No, I had seen him before then. 

Q Do you know whether or not he had ever been in 

your ~tore to h~tve dealings with resoect to these 

two Caterpillarg ortor to May the 6th of 1974? 

A Oh, gosh, that would be hard to s11y soecfically 

yes or no. I gues$ on that, I don't know. 

Q That would be because he had other accounts like 

on an air comoressor, I tftke 1. t? 

A Yes, like he would be tn to~n ~tnd he -ould droo a 

cheek by or come tn and chPck on hi.s account, 
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THE MASTER: Mr. Od1tm, I thtnk we 

must t1tke a rece~~. 

MR. ODAM: And I os~s thP wttness and 

I don't believe I h1tve any futher questions 

sbout tJ,.ese ttems ttnd I sm comDleted with 

this witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: Let me ask you, ~lease 

ms'am, -- !lftrike that and let me Jl!;f't this 

m&rked. 

THE MASTER: LPt 1 s tske a rpcess. 

MR. r:-'t'CHELL: I am sorry, Jud~e Meyers, 

I ttm going like a machine. 

THE MASTER: t thought maybe we could 

Jl;et through but I don't bel {eve 1-1e can. 

MR. MITCHELL: I Am sorry, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: I thought I should Drobably 

have hsd " rece~s a little PArlier so you 

could confer w1th her to get t~e stx thousand 

dollsr ~uestion straightPned out and move 8 

H ttlt> faster. 

MR. MITCHELL: A~ 1t matter of fact, 

Judge Mpyers, it would be ~ermisstble for 

him to do that during the bresk. I was, 

as the Court can tell, I ~~~s on something 

else clPaltnr ~ith the witness and I am sorry 
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I mis•e~ you cue of th~ Court. 

THE ~STER: That's fine. We will be 

in recess until 12:05. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would like to have 

that marked. Maybe we could save a little 

(MArked for idf'ntf.fi.cation by the 

re~orter as Exhibit R-61.) 

(WherPu~on the Court was in recess 

from 11:50 a.m. untt1 1':05 ~.m. of the 

same day.) 
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Q (By Mr. Mitchell) Mrs. Driska, at the time when 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Plains would sell equipment,say to me, and 1 

signed an agreement, do you all, through you, 

send out notices or letters showing the extracts 

of the agreements such as the balances and the 

interest payments and so forth as a general rule; 

do you understand? 

Now, are you talking about when the notes first 

start? 

Yes, ma'am, uh-huh, or at any time. When the not s 

first start -- let's be specific in this 

particular instance and maybe out of fairness 

show you an exhibit that has been marked R-61, 

and it's a carbon copy of a letter sent to --

addressed to Judge Carrillo, a recap letter, and 

ask you if you recognize it. 

Let me ask you a general question. Is that 

customary with you? 

That goes with every note. This is our recap 

sheet. It's a breakdown of what interest we are 

charging and insurance. 

Now, where would the original that original 

of that instrument, Mrs. Driska, is that one that 

is kept in your office? 

I imagine I have the original. 
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Q And the copy goes to the customer, is 

2 

3 A 

4 Q 

5 A 

6 Q 
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10 A 

II Q 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

25 A 

correct? 

that \ 

Uh-huh. 

And the exhibit number there is 

R-61. 

-- R-61. Does that appear to be the copy of a 

recap sheet that went to JuJge Carrillo at the 

time, and I am going tc hand you all of these 

documents back. 

I believe it's a copy. 

R-50 was execut~d. 

Now, you take your time and examine it for 

the figures. You look at all the documents that 

are in evidence, you know, because as you note on 

R-61, we have the balance of the old note, 

interest rebate, the insurance rebate, the 

delinquent interest, parts account, insurance and 

so forth, and be sure that those figures 

accurately reflect. That is R-61 now ties into 

the other evidence that has been introduced by 

the Judge, and if it does, would you tell us, 

please, if it appears to be a copy of the letter 

sent out to Judge Carrillo at the time he took 

over that agreement? 

Yes, this is our recap sheet for the new note. 
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Q All right. And you recognize it as such? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Now, I will read over your shoulder, if it's all 

right. You notice it points out balance of old 

note in the amount of nineteen thousand six 

eighty-six; am I correct? 

Yes. 

Interest rebate, four sixty-four ninety-five given 

on that old note. 

Yes. 

And if you wilL recall, I believe that one ninety­

six eighty-six appears somewhere else in the 

document that you hold in your hand, does it mt? 

Can you tell the Court? 

It's on the new note. 

Yes. The four months delinquent interest, I 

believe you just answered a question about that, 

that the other attorney asked you just before our 

noon break, how that it was picked up of four 

ninety-four thirty-two and charged back into that 

figure to Judge Carrillo's account; am I correct? 

Yes. 

Four months delinquent interest on R-61. 

Yes. 

And then the parts account -- now, maybe we have 
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run down that one check we were talking about 

while ago. Will you hold R-61 and let me give 

you -- that parts account was one thousand two 

thirty-two seventy-four. Do you know, and I am 

just asking whether R-60-3 might be in payment of 

that account? 

No. 

All right. 

This note was written in May of '74. 

I just thought maybe you might be able to tell us 

because we couldn't place it. 

But at any rate, do the rest of the figures 

that appear on R-61 appear to be a correct 

statement of the new account to Judge CaT.rillo; 

for example, the eighteen payments at twelve 

seventy-four eighty-one is exactly the way the 

new contract is. 

Yes. 

And the first payment, May 2nd, 1974; that is 

exactly the way it is? 

Correct. 

And the one ninety-six eighty-six was the exact 

balance, am I correct? 

That's correct. 

HR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we would offer 
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R-61. 

MR. ODAM: No objection. 

THE MASTER: Admitted. 

(Whereupon, said document having 

been previously marked for identification 

as Respondents' Exhib1t 61 was admitted.) 

MR. MITCHELL: We have no further 

questions of this witness, Your Honor. 

MR. ~DAM: Will you mark this, please? 

(Whereupon, said document was marked 

for identification as Examiner's Exhibit 

166.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, may I be excused 

to answer a phone call from Jim Bates, Jr.? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

(Whereupon, a short break was taken.) 

THE MASTER: You may proceed, Mr. Odam, 

and we are on the record. 
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E X A M I N A T I 0 N -----------

BY MR. ODAM: 

Q 

Q 

Now, Mrs. Driska, I show you what has been marked 

and introduced into evidence as E-162 and explain 

to you that this is a ledg~.r of activity in the 

checking account of Bea.avides Implement and 

Hardware. There was an entry here, for example, 

of January the 29th for three thousand dollars, 

check by which I take it -- by way of explanation 

by Mr. Bates yesterday, which means they got a 

check back in which was written for three thousand 

dollars made --

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we are going 

to object to that. That is not what 

Mr. Bates Mr. Bates was a pure, 

authenticating witness just like this lady 

is. 

MR. ODAM: Withdraw the comment. 

MR. MITCHELL: And that would certainly 

be improper. 

MR. ODAM: Withdraw the question. 

(By Mr. Odam) It's stated to be three thousand 

dollars and came back in January the 29th. 
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Now, on your card, ia it your testimony that 

on 163-A that you received three thousand dollars 

on January the 24th in payment to Benavides 

Impl ... nt and Hardware? 

Yea. 

And that was the payment for which months now? 

That would be December and January. 

Okay, and then turning ever on 162 --

MR. ODAH: For the benefit of the Court 

and the record, we decided not to aubmark 

E-162, but just refer to it by months, and 

this would be for the month of balance, 

ending date Hay 31, 1974. 

And for May 31, 1974, it shows a check was 

written for three thousand dollars and came back 

into the bank on Hay the 7th. 

MR. MITCHELL: Wait just a minute. 

Excuse me, Judge. That is improper 

characterization; be is reading from the 

ledger sheet. It could be a new deposit; 

it doesn't show 

lam 

D.. ODAH: Bo. 

MR. MITCHELL: I can't see it ia what 

D.. ODAH: It is a check. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I can't see, John. \ 

MR. ODAM: It tfl 1!1 cht>ck !llhowfn~ 'f.t 

camt> back tn M~~ty the 7th for three thousand 

dollars. 

THE MASTER: By came back tn, you mean 

cleared? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, s lr. 

THE MASTER: It was returned, 

MR. ODAM: 'is, !llir. 

THE MASTER: It Wl'l!ll rt>turnt>d to the 

b~tnk u~on '1f.ch it was drawn. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Th~~tnk you, Judge Mt>yers, 

that is where I have a ~rohlem. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) You understand, tht> way that I 

characterizt>d it, {t was a cht>ck wr{ttt>n on 

Benavtdes Im~lt>ment and Hardwl!lrt> checkin~ account, 

thAt cleared, came back fn for thret> thousand 

dollars and that datt> ls MAy tht> 7th. 

A Now ts this the check that we are tl!llktn~ ~~tbout? 

Q Well, that --

A The check that I de,ostteCI on Aorf.l the 1st? 

MR. ODAM: Arthur, dld you see there 

was onP I 1ust marked, it was the •• 
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I 

THE "'fASTER: E-166 t~ what you are 

looktno: for? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, si.r. 

THE MASTER: You .iuc:t markeod tt. 

MR. ODAM: I hid i.t down ri~ht heoreo, 

THE MASTER: It was just marked as 

Exhibit E-166. 

MR. ODAM: 3ere it is, I am sorry, I 

laid it on this desk. 

Q E-166, can you describe what E-166 is? 

A W.-11, this 'Is ttu: slip of oltof'r that the bank 

c:ends when they r.-turn a check that is insuffictf'nt 

md and it f~ Pven marked number 9, not suffteient 

funds on th.- Benavides Im01ement and Hardware 

~heek for three thousand dollars. 

MR. MITCHELL: W~ll, now, excuse me, 

Your Honor, that item whieh I have not seen 

is not the eheck, oardon me, it would be 

hearsay as to this witness. This is some 

other document. I haven't seen it so I am 

hard put to level a correct objection to it. 

THE MASTER: It .hasn't bef'n offered. 

Now, I agree shP ean 

MR. MITCHELL: She is reading it into 
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THE MASTER: No, shf" ts .1ust identi fyi.n~ 

2 f.t exceot she- did ~o a little further than 

3 identify, you are correct. 

4 Q (By Mr. Odam:) Let me droo back and start over 

5 with the QUPstton. E-166, to identify for Jud~e-

6 Me-~s and for the record, can you describe what 

7 that copy is on E-166, just --

8 Let me start over. What is the sourc.-

9 of the piece of oaper? From whom did it eome? 

10 A Tht> State Nation~tl Bank. 

II Q And is that the ~nk for Plains Mechinery Com~any? 

12 A It is our bank. 

13 Q And what is -- does that indicate that they are 

14 returni.nfO!: a cht>ck or how could you describe this 

15 document E-166? 

16 A It is just a return in~ of thts ~ tPm for three 

17 tnousand dollars. 

18 Q That is insufficient funds? 

19 A Insufficient funds. 

20 Q And what is tht> date that they arP returnin~ the 

21 f.tem? 

22 A Aoril 

23 MR. MITCHELL: E~cuse mP, Your Honor, 

24 I hate to continue to ob1ect, tt ts hi~hly 

25 improper to have thf' witness -- ask the 

---~-------------------------------------------------------~-
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witnes~ qu~sttons about an item. 

Ftrst of ell, ft ts ob1~ctionable and 

comes from a document which obviously ts 

not -- thf s wf. tntH'IS doesn't havf" any ,ersona 1 

knowl~d~~ !bout. 

THE MASTER: W~ll, now, I'd •• 

MR. MITCHELL: I would ohi pet to the 

l)rocedurP. 

THE ~bTER: You, of course, can not 

~et tt in l)iecemeal, you have ~ot to get it 

in by offerin~ in evidence and she is juet 

readin~ from it now. 

MR. ODAM: Let me ~o to the ne~t ~ues-

tton. 

Q This document you have before you, E-166, which 

f'!'r~tnted is a co,y, did you recf"i.ve this at Plains 

Machinery? 

A y f'S. 

Q And is this, can you say whether or not this 

h the bash, the items dated Aftrtl the 22nd, 

is that the basis for the determination that thP 

~artier check f.denttfied herr, rt>cei.ved A,rtl 

I 
! 

I 
I 

I 

the 2/nd and the next l!'ntry or correction, recef.ved 
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1

" ~ 
: ?2nd, is this olPce of naoPr whi~h you receive~ I 
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24 

thP basis for that debitin~? 1 

A I 
Q Now, this obviously is a xerox cony, the original 

of this would be returned to your records at the 

Plains Machinery Comnany? 

A Yes. 

Q But this would be the t tem unon whf.ch you debitP~ 

the account and unon which, for examole, in E-163-A 

that you struck ~ut the thre• thousand dollars? 

A That is the same. 

Q Because of E-166? 

A Yes. 

MR. ODAM~ Your Honor, we would offer 

166, the item from the State National Bank. 

MR. MITCHELL: JudP.e. as I understand 

it, may I ask thts "uestion of Counsel? 

It is the three thousand dollar item that 

annears already in the documents the lady 

had testified to, that is an entry as I 

understand it? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would have no obj ecti.on 

to the ultfmate, but betn~ a lawyer, I have 
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z:n4\ 
------------

~ot tn ob1rct on the grounds of the best 

t>vi.dencP and ttuthenti.cation and hPI!Iri'Jay. 

But if the Court under~tends my ~o81-

ti.on, th«" form of th«" E,h1.bi.t would fore«" 

that objection. but I understand where it 

ties in to the record. 

THE MASTER: WPll, but the best evt• 

dence ob1ection ts good at this time and 

to one extent, hearsay would be ~nod. 

If it is offered to orove that there 

were, in f~_t, lnsufftctent funds, I don't 

think you're offerin~ it for that, you are 

1ust offerin~ tt as the document u~on which 

she b~sed her deletion. 

MR. ODAM: That is rtght. 

THE MASTER: Of the stx thousand 

dollars -- the three thousand dollar credit. 

MR. MITCHELL: I withdraw my objeetton, 

Jud~e Mfers. 

THE MASTER: Then tt is admitted. 

Let me clarify somtoth:f.np,, Mrs. Driska, 

if I heard the testimony correctly, the 

check was dated A~rtl the 2nd? 

THE MASTER: But it wasn't ~osted to 
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the books unttl Aoril the 22nd? 

- ------ --~231 
A No, i.t is ooRted on Aoril the 2nd, thAt wss the 

3 dsy I de-posite~ the check i.n the bsnk 1tnd then 

4 on the 22nd i.s when th~> b~:~nk notified m• that the 

5 check was i.nRufftci.ent funds. 

6 THE MASTER: You deooqited it on the 

7 

8 A I deooRited it on the 2nJ An~ thP.n on the 22nd 

9 they sent a notice sayin~ it wssn't 

10 THE MASTER: I hard three date~, A-pril 

11 the 2nd, A0.tl the 22nd ~tnd then Aoril the 

12 27th. I~Rt misunderstood, a-puarently. 

13 A The 2nd and the 22nd. 

14 THE MASTER: Thst's rt~ht, thank you. 

15 MR. ODAM: And for cl~triftcstion, or 

16 to .... for cl~triftcati.on and to -point out, 

17 if I could, the introduction of this, I 

18 will refer to E-162, the ua~e for May thf' 

19 31st, 1974, it indicAtes ,. check comin~ 

bsck for three thous~tnd dollsrR. 

21 MR. MITCHELL: I h~tven' t ob1 P.eted to 

22 the document, Your Honor. 

23 MR. ODAM: And the fact that thPre 1.~ 

24 not insufficient funds in the bank at that 

25 time. But that is the only our-poRe for it 

! 

I 
I 
I 

---+!------------------------------~----
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and I wtll ~to~ at that noint. 

THE MASTER All rt~ht. 

MR. ODAM: Wp hav• no furth•r qu~sttons. 

MR. MITCHELL: I have no further CUPS· 

tiona of this witnes~. Y~ur Honor. 

THE MASTER: You made a rPouest that 

you may not wish to ma~~ any more, that she 

look for Aomethin~ and you may want to call 

her about i.t? 

MR. MITCqELL: I think she satisfied 

us, Y~ur h~nor. in connection with that 

matter that on frequent occasions the "ues-

tlons of delintnency would be wri. ttPn on the 

notices ~ent to the oeoole and they wouldn't 

kePl) any col)fes. 

TqE MASTER: That's fine, thank you, 

Mrs. Driska, and you are free to ~o. 

(Whereul)on the witness was excused.) 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, we would call 

as the ne':lft witness Mr. Htno.1osa. 

- - -- -
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OCTAVIO HINOJOSA, 

________ 2_~_·u~ 
I 

call~d as a witnes~. havin~ be~n first duly s~orn, 

t~stifiPd uoon his oath as follows: 

BY MR. ODAM; 

Q Would you olPase stat~ your name for the r~cord? 

A Octavio Hinojosa. 

Q All right. 

MR. Ou.'lM: Would you mark these, 

oleas~. 

(Marked for identification by the 

r~port~r as Exhibit E-167, 1 thragh 5.) 

MR, ODAM: I mt~ht clarify for the 

Court an~ for Counsel and the record, thus 

far today we have had testimony pertaining 

to Arttcle or Para~raoh _XII orimari.ly. 

Thf~ ~entleman has been kind enou~h 

and Mr. Mitchell has been kind Pnou~h to 

take him out of order an~ his testimony h~rP 

pertains, for the benpfft of th~ record, 

to the earlier testimony with regard to the 

Cash StorP, which Ms. Levatfno has conducted 

f \ 
I' 
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th~ e~ftmin~tton of the witness m ·- not 

this wttnP~s. other witnesses. 

MR. MITCHELL: Brdon me, Counsel, so 

that I mt~ht be -- have the record clear. 

I will be ~~rmitted, would I not, Y0 ur Honor, 

to cross -- to go into matters th8t Mr. 

Hlnojosa knows about, ,articularly from the 

testimony of Mr. Meek and others, will I 

not, oth~rwtse I would not want to brin~ 

him in out of order because it dtsjoints 

THE MASTER: I understand in Texas, 

when a witnPss takes the stand, he is subject 

to cross-examinatfon on ~ny matters. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht. 

THE MASTER: -- ,endtn~ whether i.t 

relates to the Cash Store or anything else, 

is that your understandin~? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Jud~e Meyers, I 

.1ust sin'!'lY dtd not I'M!Int the Court or Counsel 

to be t~ken back by my movtn~ to other 

areas, which I intend to do with th'Ls wit-

ne!'ts. 

THE MASTER: Well, I don't think you 

are lfmlted to direct examination in your 
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cross. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e. 

(By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Hino1osa, what ts the ~lace 

nf your residence? WherP do you ltve? 

I live in San Die~o. Texas. 

\ 
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(By Mr. Odam) And by whom are you employed tn 

San Diego? 

By Duval County. 

And what is your position for Duval County? 

I am assistant county auditor for Duval County. 

How many assistant county auditors are there? 

I am the only one, sir. 

How many assistant c~uncy auditors are thereT 

Just myself. 

Who is the county auditor? 

Mr. Walter Mae ..... 

You report directly to Mr. Walter Meek? 

Yes, sir. 

And who else works for the county auditor except 

you and Mr. Meek? 

Nobody else. 

Just the two of you. 

How long have you worked for Duval County? 

A little over twenty years. 

How long have you lived in San Diego -- correction. 

How long have you lived in Duval County? 

Well, all my life, except about five years that 

I spent in the service, the Army. 

Mr. Meek -- correction. Mr. Hinojosa, 1 show you 

the lteaa which the court reporter has marked as 

( 11:\ TII.-\M & :\,<;<)! 1.-\ ll" 
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E-167-1, dash 2, dash 3, dash 4, dash 5 and ask 

you to look at those for the moment and then I 

will have some questions to ask you about those 

items. You have had a chance to look at 167-1 

through 5. 

Yes, sir. 

And for the benefit of the ···ecord and for the 

Court, could you gensrl'lly describe what the 

documents are that you're holding in your hand? 

Well, actually, sir, I prepare these as a cross-

index to locat~ the claims. Whenever I need a 

claim, all I have to do is go to this card over 

here. For instance, in this case, Cash Store 

draw. 

It's a locater card? 

Yes. 

Locater card. 

Yes, sir. 

What do you call them? What do you call them, 

locater cards or cross-index cards? 

Cross-index cards. 

Cross-index cards. The items you have in your 

hands, are those Xeroxed copies or are those 

originals? 

These look like the originals. Somettmes you 

CHATHAM & ASSO<IATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE .. GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS '78401 



2 Q 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 A 

8 Q 

9 

10 

11 

12 A 

13 Q 

14 A 

15 Q 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 A 

21 

22 

23 

24 Q 

25 A 

2342 

can't tell the difference, you know, but --

If you would, I take it from your statement, 

then, that you make up cards, you said, for Cash 

Store. On 167-1 through 5, could you state 

whether or not all of those cards pertain to the 

Cash Store or not? 

Yes, sir, they do. 

Now, those particular cards you have in your hand, 

I believe you stated those are original documents 

there. The typing that is on those cards, who 

placed the ty~ing on those cards? 

I did. 

So, you personally prepared those cards yourself? 

Yes, sir, I did, personally. 

On these cross-index cards, where they and all 

the cards stayed up in the top of them, for 

example, Cash Store on the left and then Benavides, 

Texas, could you explain for the record what you 

mean l'iThen you typed Cash Store up on this card? 

Well, that is the name of the account. You know, 

that is actually the names I post there. That is 

the name of the store. That is the account 

number --

The person making the claim? 

Yes, sir. 
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Q The claimant here? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

The claimant, yes, sir. 

Okay. So, the claimant on all of these cards 

would be the Cash Store? 

Yes, sir. 

And Benavides, Texas simply indicates where the 

store is located? 

Correct, sir. 

It would be a correct statement that E-167-1 

through 5 under the column of warant numbers, 

there are no wa~ant numbers, is that correct? 

Well, actually I could have written the warant 

number, but it takes a lot of time and 1 just keep 

the --

Okay. So, you could have written the warant 

numbers, but you left it out? 

Yes, sir. 

You filled in under the claim. Could you explain 

for the Court just generally where you get these 

claim numbers, A-139, for example? 

Yes, sir. We have a book there that we call the 

minutes of accounts allowed and every claim that's 

approved by the commissioners, it's posted into 

that book and we give them a claim number. 

Now, are these cards made up when you make up a 
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claim jacket? 

They are made up after I type the check. you 

know, out of the claim, yes, sir. 

After you make up the check? 

Yes, sir. 

So, these cards would be made up say the very last 

thing right when the checks are made up, the 

warants are made up? 

Yes, sir. For instance, I prepare the checks 

today and then by tomorrow I post this card. 

So, generally on claims, for example, one of the 

first things would happen is you would type up a 

claim jacket? 

Yes. 

And those would be submitted to the Commissioners 

Court? 

Yes. 

Come back approved? 

Yes. 

Then, you would take the claim number and type 

on these cards at that time? 

Yes, sir. Give it a claim number. 

And then you would put in the amount that had been 

on the claim jacket? 

Yes, air, that is the amount in the claim; yes, 
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sir. 

And the date that is in the far right-hand corner ,i 
for example, and I am looking at 167-1, the first 

date is 1-28-74. Could you explain what is the 

date that you put in on these. 

That is the date I typed the checks. 

Okay. That you actually tyr.ed the check made out 

to claimant,Cash Store? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, with that testimony, with respect to the 

procedure gene ... 1lly on the claims, the dates and 

when you do it, would that be the same on all of 

these for the Cash Store? 

Yes, sir. Well, I'll tell you, the date here 

might be a day or two off, you know. It depends 

on when I post the cards, but usually the same 

day of the check. 

But the date that is on here is the date that you 

post it on your --

Correct. 

-- cross-index cards? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: We would offer into 

evidence, Your Honor, 167-1 through 5. 

MR. MITCHELL: We would object on the 
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grounds it would be hearsay and not proper 

authentication and not the best evidence 

of the contents -- the contents of the jacket~ 

themselves and the claims themselves being 

the best evidence of what they contain. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor --

THE MASTER: You: objection is overruled 

and the exhibits are admitted. 

(Whereupon, said documents having 

been previously marked for identification 

as E-167-1 through 5 were admitted.) 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 
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Mr. Hinojosa, where are the original documents 

that refer to these claims? 

What do you mean the original documents? 

Well, Mrs. Yzaguirre testified previously before 

you had taken the stand that she had on the sales 

made of county welfare recipients had delivered 

back all of th~ documents and there were no 

documents made except she testified she found 

some behind a rug or under a rug or something 

dated back in August of 1972. 

Now, I want to know where are the original 

documents for claims, say B-28? 

Well, they should be -- if they were subpoenaed 

for this hearing, they should be here. 

Well, as a matter of fact, they are not and that 

is why I am asking. Do you know where the 

originals are? 

I will tell you, sir, these records have been 

subpoenaed for different cases, you know, and 

I understand. 

-- and the Attorney General has subpoenaed those 
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records and the Internal Revenue. 

As a matter of fact, Mr. Hinojosa, and let me 

interrupt you. As a matter of fact, there are 

no documentations for any of these claims to the 

Cash Store in any of the jackets under the claim 

numbers that you have listed on E-167-1 through 

5. 

There should be, yes, sir. 

Well, I will ask you then, please produce them. 

Will you go back and pick them up for me? 1 

would like to bee, in other words, so we can 

understand each other. 1 would like to know the 

recipient for B-232 under 167-2. You see the 

one I'm referring to? 

Well, I thought you had the claims here. Yes, 

sir. 

You don't have the claims, though, do you? 

No, sir. 1 wasn't subpoenaed with those claims. 

I mean --

Well --

I don't have them with me, no, sir. 

What you're really telling us is that that 

information, Mr. Hinojosa, and I am not being 

critical of you; I understand from prior testimony 

that you gave in Austin that you are the assistant 
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auditor and what you do in that little index form, 

that is sort of your way to make up your own inde~ 

of the claims that have been allowed and paid by 

the Commissioners Court? 

A Yes, sir; that's right. 

Q On the county recipients of welfare? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And under my q.uestion are not any criticism of 

your making up these indexes. If you had made 

them, there wouldn't be any record of them, is 

that right? 

A That's right. 

Q But you can't know the full scope of all the 

testimony that has been introduced and some of 

that testimony as I repeat it to you is that the 

tickets, orders by the Cash Store, Mrs. Yzaguirre 

testified that they are nonexistent because she 

gave them back to the people at the time she 

received the check. 

Now, my question is: Do the jackets that 

you have listed on these Exhibits 167-1 through 5 

have in them any supporting documents at all 

today? 

A They had, yes, sir. Not today. I don't know 

where the claims are. When I made the claim, 
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there was tickets from the store and an order 

authorizing whatever it was, you know, groceries 

or whatever. There was. 

But they are nonexistent today? 

Well, as far as I know. I don't know where the 

claims are. 

Well, let me 

THE MASTER: It was your question when 

you asked him if they are nonexistent today, 

and you see the problem this witness has 

with that question? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Judge. 

THE MASTER: The question that they are 

nonexistent would be that they are not in the 

county auditor's office of Duval County today. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Did you understand the Court's ~-

Yes, sir. Well, they are not now -- somebody 

subpoenaed them and I don't know who. Different 

people have taken out these records. 

Well, let me see if I can't find --

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Judge, I am going 

to have to take -- that is the trouble with -~ 

I have got to go back and dig up some earlier 

evidence as regards tho3e Cash Store tickets 

and I am sorry I am delaying the procedure, 
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but I just can't call them off the top of 

my head by Mrs. Yzaguirre, Judge. 

THE MASTER: I will see if I can help 

you. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, it was in the 

area of R-47. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Let me j•1st handle it, I 

believe, this way: 

Mr. Hinojosa, you testified that in the 

jackets there were the original of the documents 

supporting the ~ash Store claims against your 

county. 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. l-Ie renew 

our objection, then, Judge Meyers, on the 

grounds the best evidence rule and these are 

obviously extracts made by this witness. 

THE MASTER: Well, that is all I admit 

them as, Mr. Mitchell. They are a cross-

reference check made by this man, is that 

correct, sir? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: I admit them as that. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, then, Your Honor, 

I am going to further object to them as being 
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irrelevant and certainly if counsel is 

offering them to show that my client got all 

of that money, then, they will go completely 

beyond the scope of the formal notice. I am 

somewhat taken back by a blanket notice of 

every check --

MR. ODAM: Well, he --

MR. MITCHELL: May I ask counsel's 

intent? 

THE MASTER: I will ask counsel the 

relevancJ 

MR. ODAM: Yes, Your Honor. As far as 

relevancy goes, number one, they obviously 

all pertain to Cash Store. Number two, they 

are offered just as Judge Meyers pointed out 

and that is simply to show that this 

gentleman on all of these prepared a cross-

index and they are simply offered as a 

cross-index of those items of all of the ones 

here. They are not offered to expand the 

notice to charge him with stealing every 

amount of money here, but simply what they 

are, and that is a cross-index of the claims 

made by the Cash Store, which he prepared on 

or about the time that he prepared the check 
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to the Cash Store; just that, as the Court 

pointed out. 

MR. MITCHELL: We renew our objection. 

On what ultimate issue are they offered, 

Judge? We would say they are irrelevant 

and immaterial and I will proceed to ask him 

some questions about them and get on with it. 

THE MASTER: You may be right. They 

may not be probative, but I would suppose 

that they are sort of back-up documents to 

show tha~ cross checks were made. I don't 

know. They are admitted as that. 1 am not 

announcing from the bench what they prove 

to be. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right, Then, Your 

Honor, may I continue my cross-examination 

without waiving my objection? 

THE MASTER! Certainly. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Hinojosa, on your 

Exhibit 167-1 and dash 5 which 1 assume you're 

going to <t.;rant these originals back and leave 

copies here. You want these back for your file? 

Yes, sir, we need them, yes, sir. 

So, that the record speaks to what you have done 

here. First of all, you weren't -- who were you 
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asked by -- who asked you to go back and pick up 

these records? Who, Mr. Odam or Mr. Flusche? 

1 believe they were subpoenaed through Mr. Meek, 

you know, by the Attorney General's office. I 

don't know directly who it was. 

All right. Now, when you made up your index, 

the county -- the Commissioaers Court had acted 

on each and every one of these claims; am I 

correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And your informdtion came only after the 

Commissioners Court would have acted on a given 

claim and that claim, I believe, you have teatifier. 
I 

to was posted on the books of the Commissioners \ 

Court's minutes? 

Yes, sir. 

All right. So, that it's clear again, 167-1 and 

5, each and every one of these items has been 

posted on a public book in the Commissioners 

Court of Duval County; am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And it's from that posting that you got the claim 

number, the warant number, the amount, the funds 

to which it was charged and the date; am I 

correct? 
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That information was posted from the claim, air, 

from the original claim. 

All right, sir. And in addition, I believe the 

code number, you testified back up there in Aueti~, 
I 

if I remember, that ia a number you assigned to 

it. 

Well, that is a system we ~~ve for our bookkeeping. 

Right. You have yol!r tittle code nuaber index I 
and once that jacket coaea out and the payment is , 

authorized to be made, you assign the code number 

and that is th ... code number that is put on each 

and every one of these jackets? 

Yes, sir. 

That comes out of the book you take the number 

out of, Mr. Hinojosa, I believe, is that correct? 

Well, we have a little reference book where we 

have this code system, yes. 

Nothing in this exhibit indicates, of course, 

that -- strike that. There is nothing that -- th t 

is also a bad question. 

Let me back up. You're not telling this 

Court that Duval County did not pay other grocery 

stores for groceries on account of welfare 

recipients, are you? 

No, sir. 
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There are other grocery stores that received 

money, am I right? 

Well, there is a few other grocery stores the 

county used to purchase groceries. 

Okay. And Mr. Hinojosa, you cannot by looking at 

the records that you have looked at, the records 

reflect that the Cash Store received these 

warants made payable to the Cash Store; am I 

correct? That is the warants were made payable 

to Cash Store? 

They were, yes, sir. 

All right. And on the dates now, in looking at 

all the dates, I find only one and that is on 

E-167-2 that appears to be here one, two, three, 

four, five entries made in 1975, am I correct? 

Uh-huh. 

All of the other entries are made prior to 1975? 

Correct. 

All right. And looking now as to the entries 

made in 1975, E-167-2 appears to be certain claims, 

B-232; am I reading it correctly? 

Yes, sir. 

B-325, B-459, B-460 and B-400 are checks made 

payable to Cash Store beginning the lOth of 

~ February, 1 75 and ending 3-12-75; am I correct~ 
A YeA sir_ 
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Q And thrr~ ar~ non~ aft~r ~-1?-75 to th~ Cash 

2 Stor~? 

3 ' A w~ h•v~n't o8id no bills since March. 

4 Q All rt~ht, so th~ answer to th~ ~uPstion would 

5 bP YPS -- no, ther~ ts none or is there, th~re ls 

6 none made oayable after 3-12 to the Cash Store 

7 on account of wet fAre rec~oi.eonts? 

8 A No, t'!i.r. 

9 Q And only th~~~ fi.ve in the year of 1975? 

10 A The yur 1975. 

11 Q All ri~ht, l'llr, "'nd I bett~vt> tt rf"flt>ets that 

12 that was -- that last one was March 12th, 1975? 

13 A Yes, si.r. 

14 Q Nnw, in ~oin~ back into the nri~4na1 jackets, Mr. 

15 Hino1osa, and I Am talkin~ now about when you 

16 made uo your inde~ card in th~t ori~i.nal jacket, 

17 of course, there would be the vnucher, or in this 

18 o~trti.cular cat'!~ th«" aal~~ sUo, would it not? 

19 A Yes, sir. 

~ Q St~nPd by either Abel YP.a~utrre or Lauro Yza~uirre 

21 or Mrs. Lauro Y~a~uiire on behalf of the Cash 

22 Store or someone in behalf of the Cash Store, am 

23 I correct? 

24 A Well, actually, no, sir. They havf" a ticket and 

2S then they have another olece of oaper attached tn 
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t~e ticket, you know. 

2 Q All rt~ht, that is --

3 A With th~ authori~Ation of either the welfare 

4 officer or county commissl<mer. 

s Q Ri~ht, so that they're -- well --

6 MR. MITCHELL: Strike t~~t. 

7 Q Well, what you are telltn~ ue in the jacket is 

8 that official form that say~ Duval County WelfAre 

9 I 
10 

on it? 

A Ye!ll, ~dr. 

11 'I Q That fs issued b the welfare officer or some 

12 authori~ed officer? 

13 A Yes. sir. 

14 Q Is that correct? 

15 A Yes. sir. 

16 Q And in that 1eckt>t would bt> thlllt offteial authori-

17 zation? 

18 A Yes, sir. 

19 Q And you would alweys cheek to be sure that that 

20 official authoriP.ation was there, am I correct? 

21 A Corrt>ct, sir. 

~ Q And. of courst>, they would have been ·~•roved by 

23 

24 

25 

the commissioner's court and onsted on a oublic 

notice, when you ~ot to them anyway, and took 

them off for your fndex. wouldn't it? 
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2 Q Y~R, Rtr, I under~tand. And ~o that the record 

3 

4 County re~ul~r1y me~tR every month, I understand. 

s A ThP ~econd Monday of every month, yes, str. 

6 Q And 8s far aR you know, as lon~ ss you have been 

7 ~own there, haR done ~o for the twenty years that 

8 you have been wtth Duval County? 

9 A Yet:, Ri.r. 

10 0 All rt•ht, and tt maintains 8 docket, does it 

11 not, 'Mr. Hinoiof .. ? 

12 A Yes, !':tr. 

13 Q The court does? 

14 A YeA, sir. 

15 Q And ft also maintatns -- ts there a ~osttn~ ln 

16 addition to the docket? Is there an additional 

17 ~ol'ltfn~ to the minutes of the clatms allowed that 

18 you know of? 

19 A We hAvtt thil!l book, what I call the mi_nutes of 

20 accounts allowed, and, of course, the commissioners 

21 h~ve their docket, the county clerk tR res~onsfble 

22 Q I am sorry, wttre you finished, I didn't mean to 

23 ste~ on your answer. 

24 A The commissioners meet and thPy hRve a docket, 

25 you know, of their own. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK P\...AlA 
CORPUS CHRISTI. TE)(AS 78401 

I -t-



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2160 

Q All rf.~ht. 

A And thPy write whatever they au~rove in the 

minutes and talktn~ about claims, when thPy 

auorove the claims, we ~Pt them back, you know, 

and we post them tnto tht~ book we havem the 

nfftce, minutes of accounts allowed. 

Q So that the mtnute~ of the commf.sst.onPrs court 

are the source for the minutes of the accounts 

allowed which you extract and you keep in your 

office? 

A Yel'l, slr. 

Q The tax asse~sor-collector, .am I correct? 

A The county clerk. 

Q I am sorry, the county clerk's office? 

A Ye~. 

Q And that i~ a public record? 

A It is, yes, sir. 

Q So that if, let's say for examnle, a check went 

out in January of 1975 to the Cash Store, that 

check, that notation of that would be tn the 

minutes of the -- that you just ment~oned the 

minutes of accounts allnwP~? 

A I would say it has something written in thPre. 

claims 0 resented or aoproved, they write that in 

the minutes, ye~, sir. 
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Q Okay, now, l~t me just hand you 1ust on~ at 

2 random, for ~~am~le, that has been introduced 

3 by the E~amtner~. 

4 All ri~ht, let's say E-90 thts is a clai.m 

5 E-9A and E-99 and E-100. That ts ~ssentially 

6 the ~ame gen~ral format as follow~d in these, 

7 for these ~roceries, am I correct? 

a A Yes, sir. 

9 Q That is, therE' would be a cl8tm and the f:!;ross 

10 recet~ts instead of E-9A, whtch is here on the 

ll BPnavides Impl~~~nt and Hardware, would be thE' 

12 welfare, thE' Duv~tl County welfare form a~~roved 

13 by the -- by an officer, am I correct? 

14 A Yes, sir. 

~ Q The 1acket, am I correct? 

~ A Yes, sir, where the jacket is the same exce~t 

17 thP 

18 Q ThE' cotHng woulc'l be difft-rPnt? 

~ A The code would be diffprPnt. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q And the codtn~ and the claim number would be 

different, am I correct? Tht- jacket would havt­

a different claim number as reflPd:ed on'ypur 

Exhtbit herP? 

24 A Yes, str, it would have another claim number, 

25 yes, str. 
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0 An .. '9'"U "'OU 1 d .. .,t'rlltt"t from anv anfl ,.,, c11t(m~ 

thP information ltlt to thP t"tetmant llttld thP 

~~tmount of mt>nf'Y 11nc:' voul~ you nut thP ... nn 

c., .. min\ltP!I of thf> clef me: ~tllnwPd" 

A Yto~. "tr. 

't"Pcord, whf'., 111 claim i.e me~.- hv Duv~tl County, 

thP cl~tim 1~tckPt, thf' ~unnnrtin~ ~ncumPntlttion, 

em 1 corrf't-t" 

A Ytos, ~tr. 

0 And on th• ~~tt-kf't would b• your cndin~. ~howtnv 

vour P7aminet:1on end your codp number. Look •t 

E-99. Dt.d you ~ut that cndP numbPr ?.29? 

A y,.,., sfr. 

Q It would bP your C'odi.n~ from your t-7emfn8t1on, 

111m I correct, Mr. Htno~nse? 

A Ye-!11, !lti.r, it hr. 

Q And en P7eminat•on and "" ~~tnnrnv~tl by t~P 

Q And the- ts!luencP of thP vouc~f'r? 

A Y•~, uh-huh. 
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Q An~ th~ rpturn ~f the voucher ~n the duP 

c~ur~e ~nd th&t voucher ~oul~ th~n be ~ut in 

the trP~~urer'~ office, or whPrP? 

A YPs, sir, the tre~sur~r 's t~~ cu~todisn of the 

c~ncellPd ch~ck~, yes, sir. 

Q All ri~ht, so th&t in e~tch and every esse then 

fn ~tddition t~ the written documentation, there 

is the ~osting, the offic~al ~o~tfn~ in the 

commissioners court minutes ~nd thP officl&l 

oostfng wherP the cl&ims are involved And com-

mls~ioners court action involved ~~tyments of 

cl11im fn a book called minutes of accounts 

~tllowed. 

A BPsides that minutes of Accounts allowed, we 

11lc;o have our bookkeeoinJ;!; rpcords, you know, the 

1~dger And the 1ournal whPre we nost each and 

every check that is issued by Duval County. 

Q Yes, I meant to ask you about that. Under the 

law, tn addition to the documentation of these 

things that we h~tVP gone into, the 1~tw reQuires 

8 ~nl'lti.nJ!; in~ dsi\' journl'tl, does it not? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Of the claims s11owed and th11t is In 8 well 

bound book, I su~oose, that yru kee~ in your 

nffice? 
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A Yf's. cdr. 

2 Q So thf' county clf'rk has got a record in the 

3 rrtfnute!l of accounts allowed, 11m I corrf'ct? 

4 A YP~, c;' ,. . 

5 Q Thf' county iu~gp or the commtsc;~oners court 

6 wot.,ld havE' 8 rPcor<'f tn thE' mfnutes of the com-

7 mic;c;ioners book? 

8 

9 Q Anrl thPn your offtcP would have a r.-cord in 

10 

11 A Yf'", cdr. 

12 0 And thP cnuntv audftor •nu1~ audit your books? 

13 

14 0 Thf' <:tatf', dnP~ thf' stl'ttr aucH t your books? 

15 A PP rlnn 1 t h~tvP any audtts, no, c;ir. WE'll, lately 

16 t~P AttornE-y Gf'nf'r~tt has bf'en invPstfgating, you 

17 knn"'· 

n Q All rf2ht. 

19 A But WP -- thP commissioner!" havP nPver madE' an 

20 auCitt. 

~ 0 Well, thP bookc; arP ma<'IP avaf1ab1P for audtt 

22 

23 

25 

under the law and they 8rr 8 mattpr of ~ublic 

record arP they not? 

MR. MITCHELL: May 1 have just one 
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mtnut~. Ju~ge Meyer~? 

THE MASTER: Y~s. ~ir. 

(DiscusRion off the r~cor~.) 

Q LPt m~ show you some documents thAt have brn 

introduced, Mr. Hinojosa, and let me take a~ain, 

1ust usin~ as a ~attern E-99 I hand that to 

you. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q E-99 {s a joint E~htbit that has ~ot E-99, E-9R 

and E-100. 

Q I don't know, out of fatrn~ss to you E-9R was 

~reviously identified as an invoice e~ecuted by 

Benavides Im~lement and Hardware Comoany by 

f'i_ther Mr. Couling or Mr. Gon~ale~. 

Now, this ~ortion here that is written on 

hP.rP in red ink, I am talking About the ink on 

the invoice, you see it is writtE-n in red, 229, 

that ST)oears to bP thP codP. numbE-r, doe~tn 1 t t t? 

A Yes, sir, I writE' it. 

Q All ri~ht, now, that is •hat I was going to ask 

you. On each and E-very onE' of these, thE'rP. 

a 0 ,.,ears to be a coding and th~t coding is brou~ht 

forward on the iacket, code 229, isn't it? 
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A YPs, l'rir. 

Q All rt,:1:ht, no11• I will ask you thb oncE' -- I 

rPttlly want t~~ oroce~urP, once you rec~ivP, let'~ 

assump you hltVP ~nt -- when would be the first 

t'mP you would ~Pe E-9R fn th~ claim orocedure 

an~ the claim for BPnavides Imolement and Hard-

warP, Mr. Hinojosa? 

A Well, I say maybe a we~k beforP the commissioners 

meet, you know. 

Q A 11 right. 

A That will g~ve me about five days to orocess 

all of these claim~. 

Q All rf~ht, now, do you have --what do you have 

before you at that time? Do you have -- other 

than let's ~ay the invoice, do yru have the jacket 

or do you make the iacket uo? 

A . No, sir, I check the invoices and write a code 

Q All ri~ht. 

A All the claims are inside the iackets when they 

are taken to thP commi!'lsfoners court for aoprov~tl. 

Q All right, finP, So that when thP commissioners 

get it, you have already looked at the invoice, 

assi~ned it 11 code number, nrenared the jacket, 

you assi~n it a claim ~~mber or do they do that? 
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A No, after th~y ar~ ~~~~rov~d. we write every 

2 claim in the minut~s of accounts allowed. 

3 Q All right. 

4 A And th~tt is t-'hen we give tt a claim number. 

5 

6 A Y~s. str. 

7 Q Goon. All ri_ght, now, Mr. flLtoitHut, what is 

8 this R and B underneath that 219? 

9 A That 1~ thP fund, you know, road and bridge. 

10 Q Fund? 

11 A Fund. 

12 Q That you makP a determinat ton from wh~tt, looki n~ 

13 at thP fnvo{cp that that ought to bP charged to, 

assign it a cod~ number, that is all so the code 

15 number is tie~ fn to the tyDe of e~Dendfture, 

16 i sn' t t t? 

11 A Yes, sf.r. 

18 Q So whPn you comP back ovpr hPre .otnd !'lay codP 

19 number 229, your inde~ would show that ?29 would 

20 be what, road work? 

U A 229 in this case ts truck hirP rent~tl. 

22 Q Fine. 

~ A Lease of a truck or tractor, whatevPr. 

24 Q All rbht. No,..,, looking at, fr r P~amDle, Mr. 

25 Hlnoiosa, E-101 and I know thPrP again I am 
i 

--~~---------------------------------------r 
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not ~oing to ~o t~rou~h it, there Ag8tn is 

red writing, a cfrcle made on this little ta~e 

A Ye~, sir. 

Q I~ that your handwriting on E-101? 

A That ls my handwriting And notation. 

claim, what do you do with it? Do you sto~ it's 

orocessing At that oo1at? 

A Well usually -- I have been checking these claims 

so long I don't ~~ve much trouble ln reBding 

whatever they have in the bills. you know, 

Q Well, the reason, for e~amole, I am going to 

~sk you about E-104 and 105. Now, E-104 appears 

to be a Benavides Im~lement and Hardware, on 4-5-71 

for eleven hundred and eighty-ntnn dollars and 

there l!tgein you hl!tve got your codt> number ?.29 

R Rrl B on lt, am I correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And that is in your hl!tndwrltlng, correct? 

A Correct, 

Q With the red ink cfrcling of the eleven hundred 

eig~ty-nine dollars? 

A Yes, l'lir. 

Q Now, I notice on E-105 that someone disl!tllowed 
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2 and rfghty-ntnr wa~ not allowrd, but only ntnr 

3 hundrrd and n1nety-eight ddlar~. Do you see 

4 that? 

s A Yrs, ~•r. 

6 0 0n E-105? 

7 A Yr~, ~-tr. 

8 Q So that even though you might h~vr ~nproved it 

9 a~ ~hown by E-104 for elrvrn hundrerl and eighty-

10 nine dollar~. it wasn't really f-tnally aonroved 

11 but for ntne hm,, red ~tnd nf_nety-elght dollars. 

12 I was wondering if you could tell the Court 

13 how that haonens. Does that haooen at the 

14 commi~~-toners level? 

15 A Yes, ~lr, it dof's sometimes, you kmw. They 

16 rbl't hav.- t-nouc:oh fund!'! or tht> commis~toners deci~p 

17 to ~fsallow a crrtain ltmount, thry u~uatly out 

18 tn whatPver amount thry want to allow, yrs, slr. 

19 Q So th11t thE" commi ~~lonl"rs court dors olay A real 

20 oart in thr allowance or disallowancr of those 

21 aoo8rrntly down there, do they not? If that, for 

22 f'Y.am0 1e, in Exhibit there, E-104 --

23 A Yrs, sir. 

U Q -- sneaks of tyoical situatior~ because you, 

25 your clatm is for one thousand onr hundred anrl 
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ri~hty-ntne rlollArs an~ tt ts anorovrd by you 

for onr thousAnd onr hundred And rt~hty-nine buL 

~hen you got hrforr the court ft is aonrovecl for 

only nine hundre~ and efghty-ntne dollar~. isn't 

thAt correct? 

A Mr. Mitchell, we hAve no Ruthortty to approve 

or clisaoorovr. 

0 I undrrstand. 

Q My nurstion is not out to you tn the form of 

criticism, it is only to actu8lly grt the fact~ 

as to how the commissioners sytem work~. 

A That is right. 

Q And {f you eo back and pick un now such as you 

werr asked to do by the attorney general here, 

like E~hibit E-167-2, you would ofck uo thr 

corrrctrd figurr allowed by thr commissioners 

court and not the claim amounts, am I correct? 

Q Okay. 

sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: I believe I Am abmt 

th~ough, Judge, if I -- to avoid bringing 

hf.m back. 

THE MASTER: 

to reflrct thPt you are thr one who is 
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workine o~tst one o'clock, ~tnd not under 

ltny wht1) of me. 

MR. MITCHELL: Wrll maybe, Jud~e. I 

mi~ht have some more ouestfon8. I notice 

there are some other corrected m~ttertal 

here and I don't want to --

MR. ODAM: Your Hr,r,nr, I don't know 

exactly how to -- tor ex~tml)le, to 1)0Se th£ 

obiectton as to the corrections, et ceter~t. 

I sU~Do~e {t would be on the ~rounds of 

relevancy. 

I think the testimony on 811 of the 

claims 1)resented by the county is pretty 

clear as to what took Dlace and I 1)resume 

tt ~oes to the le~al theory that Mr. Mitchell 

has that the county commissioners court put 

the stsmD of a1)1)roval and, therefore, therP 

can be no fraud, et cetera. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, my authortty is 

it is a 1udtcial action of the commissioners 

court. It is a court and that it is 

1)&ssed by them and it ts res iudtc~tta 1ust 

like any other court. 

MR. ODAM: I aD~rec~ate that. 

as I said, my ob~ection would be on the 
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groundl'l of relevancy if that is hts theory 

2 to go throu~h th8t tyne of nrocedure. 

3 
I would sti~ulste, for exam~le, if 

4 
it would sneed u~ the nroces~. that for 

5 every time that there is " change on there, 

6 that Mr. Hino1os8~ testimony would be thMt 

7 the county commissi.oPerL, cou:::t m~de the 

8 ty0 e of change, li~e he sRid, ~nd ran down 

9 the one thousand one hundred eighty-nl~0 

10 dollars back to nine hundre~ nnd ninety-~i£~c 

II dollars, ir he wants to develoo ~hat. 

12 I think they would soeak for themselve~ 

13 and it would be no des 0 ute as to wh~t thdt 

14 ~'ould bl", 

IS All I'm saytn~ is, I do not s~e a 

16 necessity to ~o through each une of these 

17 documents with the claim _1ackPt '.:c Une out, 

18 to indicate who disauorovPd ~hem or who 

19 reduced them, et cetera. 

20 MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, mey I --

21 I am obvioul'lly not going to he able to 

22 finil'lh within the working l'lchedule, but ma~ 

23 I -- it would be very imoortnnt to me and 

24 my cl tent to have thf.s ~~- tness, I im~!l:inf' 

25 
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and back in the mornin~, ask ~lm to bring 1

1 

me the tntPrnal documentation on these 

claims that are on E-167-2, which sre th~ 

claims ~~own natd by -- to Cash Store, 

February and March of thfs year. Those 

are very ~mportant to us. 

THE MASTER: Mr. :.t_no1 os~, can you 

find those jackets and Ruonorting documan-

tatfon? Is thPre any reason why you could 

not bring th~m tomorrow? 

A No, sir, if I c"u find them in thrl' office, I 

will be more than glad to brin~ them over. 

THE MASTER: Well, they wouldn't be 

ln your office, will they? Wouldn't they 

be in the county treasurer's offi.ce? 

A Well, the checks, the cancellerl checks will be 

fn the county treasurer's office. 

THE MASTER: But the others, the 

claim ;ackets and supoorting documents 

would be in your office, if it is there? 

A Yes, ~tr, if it fs ther~. 

THE MASTER: All right, can you get 

the county treasurer to turn over the 

cancelled checks to you. if they are ther~~ 

A Yet~~, sir, ''I can ask th'" county tressurt>r to let 
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rot- have them. 

MR. MITCHELL: If he net-ds a sub~oena, 

Y~ur Honor, we are, of course, oreoared to 

ask the Court to tssuP a sub 0 oen8, 

THE MASTER: You may have to go to the 

county treasurer or you may have to sub~oena 

the county treasurer. 

Well then, I will ask you to do that, 

Mr. Hino1osa. State it again what you want 

so Mr. Hino1o!'ta will understand fully. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor. I 

wodd like to have, tf it olease tht- Court, 

on E-167-2 Mr. Hinojosa's claims numbered --

A Yt-s, sir. 

Q You understand what I want, Mr. Hinojosa? 

A Yt-s, sir. 

Q I want the su~~orttng documents for B2~2. 235, 

459, 460, 600, showin~ the su~~orting documents-

tion for the oayment of the forty-five dollars, 

the 4~0, the 10, the si~ hundred and thirty-five 

dollars and the seven hundred and eighty dollars 

to Cash Store on 2-10·75, 2-20-75 and 3-12-75 

and I would like to have also the cancelled 

check8 to seP who endorsed them, 

A Yes, sir, I understanJ. 
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-----4~----------------------------------------------------~'~'JSt 
M •'!'<' ~. '!ITCHELL' Th•n k you , J u d• • I 

2 
II 
~ ' 
i 

3 
I 

Tl-IE MASTER: At R:10 tomorrow mornin)!', 
4 

Mr. HinojosR. 

5 
A At R:10. 

6 ' t \... . . ; 
THE MAS'TER.: :Yif'n, !'lir, and we wi 11 bf' 

7 
in recr.S!'l until then~ 

8 

9 

10 from 1:10 o.m. on Dp~ember t~e 2nd, 1975, 

II until R:10 P.m. on December the 1rd, 1975.) 
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